ANNUAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS
01 Chairman’s Letter 			

02

02 CEO's Report			

04

03 Directors’ Report			

08

04 Auditor's independence declaration			

29

05	
Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income			

32

06 Statement of financial position			

33

07 Statement of changes in equity			

34

08 Statement of cash flows			

35

09 Notes to the financial statements			

36

10 Directors' declaration			

75

11	Independent auditor's report to the
members of Isentia Group Limited			

76

12

78

Shareholder information			

01

CHAIRMAN’S
LETTER

Isentia Group Limited > Annual Report 2015

Chairman’s Letter 1

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER
$110.6M

I AM PLEASED TO REPORT THAT IN OUR FIRST FULL
YEAR AS A PUBLICLY LISTED COMPANY, ISENTIA HAS
EXCEEDED THE FY2015 TARGETS OUTLINED IN THE IPO
PROSPECTUS.
Dear Shareholder
As Chairman of Isentia Group Limited, it is my pleasure on behalf of the directors to introduce the company’s Annual Report for the
Financial Year 2015.

$127.3M

REVENUE $127.3M – UP 15% ON
FY14 AND 2% AHEAD OF THE
PROSPECTUS FORECAST

I am pleased to report that in our first full year as a publicly listed company, Isentia has exceeded the FY2015 targets outlined in
the IPO prospectus. The company achieved revenue of $127.3 million, 2% ahead of the IPO prospectus and growth of 15% year on
year. EBITDA of $42.5 million and underlying NPATA of $27.4 million also outperformed IPO prospectus forecasts. Operating cashflow
conversion continues to be above 90% providing a strong capital structure to support future growth. The Board congratulates the
management team and staff of Isentia for these achievements.

$42.5M

FY2015 was both a year of solid growth across all of our revenue streams and another dynamic year of development for our key
value added services, with client penetration in both social media and insights almost doubling from FY2014 and media database
products also up strongly to 17.3% of all clients.
Revenue was strong across Australia and New Zealand, with an average revenue per client of $31,400, growth of 14% year on year,
backed by continuing transition to fixed fee service arrangements and a strong uptake of value added services across social media,
insights and database products.
It was also an important year for our longer term growth strategy with the recent acquisition of leading content marketing agency
King Content building our value added services portfolio, as well as important additions to the Senior Management team in the
critical roles of CIO and Chief Executive-Asia, new investment in products, platforms and IT infrastructure that will continue to
provide opportunities in FY2016 and beyond. The rollout of our premier Software-as-a-Service (‘SaaS’) platform, Mediaportal, across
Asia is well underway, with accompanying development of our sales and client service teams in the region.

15%

$30.9M

EBITDA OF $42.5M – AHEAD OF FY14
BY 38% AND 3% ABOVE PROSPECTUS
FORECAST

38%

We continue to see acquisitions as a key strategy to strengthen our geographic position in Asia and emerging markets and scaling
our value added services and new services desired by our clients.
Corporate governance enhancements since the initial transition to a listed entity have continued under the guidance of the Board’s
Audit and Risk Committee. We are pleased to see the rigour with which our staff have been made aware of the new obligations,
responsibilities and rights that come with listed company status.

$19.0M

The Board is pleased to announce a final dividend of 3.8 cents per ordinary share and we look forward to another year of progress
across all our strategic pillars in FY2016.

$27.4M

Yours sincerely

Doug Flynn
Chairman

NPATA OF $27.4M – AHEAD OF FY14
BY 44% AND 1% ABOVE PROSPECTUS
FORECAST

44%

20 August 2015
FY14
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CEO’S
REPORT
OUR FIRST FULL YEAR AS A PUBLICLY
LISTED COMPANY (ASX: ISD) HAS BEEN
ANOTHER TRANSFORMATIVE YEAR FOR
ISENTIA.
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Strong growth in our value added services and key acquisitions
have strengthened the company regionally and enhanced our
suite of services. We have also extended our premium Software
as a Service offering, Mediaportal, across all of our South East
Asian markets, with a strong take up and a rollout of further
functionality planned in the coming financial year.
These important achievements across our four growth
areas put us in a strong position to continue to meet our
business goals in FY2016. We were also recognised as the
global Communications Measurement Company of the
Year at the Association for Measurement and Evaluation
of Communications (‘AMEC’) international conference in
Amsterdam in June 2015, pleasing global recognition from our
peers for the industry-leading work we do across measurement
and insights.

Growth drivers
Isentia exceeded its IPO prospectus revenue targets in FY2015,
with strong performance across the business, particularly in
our identified growth areas of social media, insight services,
database products and moving to a fixed fee Software-as-aService revenue model.

Value Added Services
Take up of social media, media database and insights products
and services continued to drive increased revenue per-client.
Isentia is focused on excellent client service providing the
opportunities to sell more value added services, we measure
our client service through the Net Promotor Score (‘NPS’)
score and the Isentia NPS score for FY2015 was +21. Even
with the strong growth in client penetration in FY2015, 75% of
the Australian and New Zealand clients remain as prospects
for these services, and growth opportunities exist as the
diversification of media content continues.

Asia
An important period of consolidation and integration across
our South East Asian markets in FY2015 now sees Mediaportal
established in these markets and a client service structure
well-suited to drive growth across both the Mediaportal
platform and the value added services. An acquisition in the
region provided a stronger base to support multi-region clients,
while a restructure of our Asian leadership team, led by our
new Chief Executive-Asia, David Liu, will enhance management
responsiveness in each of our markets.

Innovation

Awards

Isentia’s innovation in FY2015 maintained its strong digital and
mobile first theme, with the enhancement of our multi-lingual
databases continuing to add value to our range of products and
services delivering insightful media and social analytics. These
will provide the ability to build meaningful connections from the
data and allow our clients to use social content analysis in ever
more intelligent ways to support their communications planning
and provide business insight. A number of these innovations
are in testing stage and we look forward to bringing them to
market in FY2016.

We were very proud to be recognised as the global
Communications Measurement Company of the Year at the
AMEC international conference in Amsterdam in June 2015, the
culmination of five years as the most awarded media insights
business in the world, including another eight awards in 2015.
It is particularly pleasing that an Isentia Insights specialist has
once again won the Young Professional of the Year award. Ngo
Thi Khang has been a pioneer of our media insights services in
Vietnam, starting our team in that market five years ago.

Acquisitions
Acquisitions continue to be a key part of Isentia’s long term
growth strategy, to strengthen the group’s regional offering
through highly accretive bolt-on businesses, to continue
to expand our value added services and enter high-growth
markets with proven media intelligence companies.
Isentia completed a successful “bolt-on” acquisition in Hong
Kong with all key clients and employees retained, providing a
strong platform to increase the revenue per customer by selling
more services to the acquired client base.
The acquisition of King Content in August 2015 extends Isentia’s
services to communications strategy and content marketing.
King Content is a market leader in Australia and an emerging
presence in Singapore, Hong Kong, the UK and the USA. King
Content’s services are highly relevant to Isentia’s existing client
base and will accelerate our strategic objective of accessing the
larger marketing budgets.

AMEC Awards:
• Communications Research and Measurement Company of
the Year
• Young Professional of the Year - Ngo Thi Khang
• Best Measurement of a Public Sector Campaign (Gold)
• Most innovative use of measurement in a digital campaign
(two Silver)
• Best measurement of a consumer campaign (Silver)
• Best use of measurement for a single event (Bronze)
• Integrated communication measurement/research (Bronze)
Our Social Media Agency, Two Social, also won a silver W3 Web
Creativity Award for our work on the IBM Graduate Campaign.

EARNED
MEDIA

PAID
MEDIA
STRATEGY

Our first full year as a public company has been another
important step in the long term development of Isentia.
Management and the Board have worked strongly to set a clear
direction for the company and I would like to thank all Isentia
employees for their continued dedication in driving our growth
in this exciting industry and dynamic region.

OWNED
MEDIA
John Croll
Chief Executive Officer
20 August 2015
Sydney
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THE DIRECTORS PRESENT THEIR REPORT, TOGETHER WITH
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, ON THE CONSOLIDATED
ENTITY (REFERRED TO HEREAFTER AS THE ‘GROUP’)
CONSISTING OF ISENTIA GROUP LIMITED (REFERRED TO
HEREAFTER AS THE ‘COMPANY’ OR ‘PARENT ENTITY’)
AND THE ENTITIES IT CONTROLLED AT THE END OF, OR
DURING, THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015.
Directors

Review of operations

The following persons were directors of Isentia Group Limited
during the whole of the financial year and up to the date of this
report, unless otherwise stated:

The profit for the group after providing for income tax
amounted to $19,616,000 (30 June 2014: loss of $18,406,000).

Doug Flynn
Chairman and Independent
		Non-Executive Director
John Croll		

CEO and Managing Director

Pat O’Sullivan

Independent Non-Executive Director

Fiona Pak-Poy

Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr Geoff Raby

Independent Non-Executive Director

Principal activities

03

DIRECTORS’
REPORT

During the financial year the principal continuing activities of
the group consisted of the provision of media intelligence to
public and private sector clients through directories, media
release distribution, monitoring of the media and analysis.

Dividends
On 18 February 2015, the directors declared an unfranked
interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 of
$6,200,000 representing 3.1 cents per ordinary share, with an
ex-dividend date of 2 March 2015, which was paid on 18 March
2015. On 20 August 2015, the directors declared an unfranked
final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 of $7,600,000,
representing 3.8 cents per ordinary share, with an ex-dividend
date of 2 September 2015, which will be paid on 17 September
2015.

The group operates a market-leading Software-as-a-Service
(‘SaaS’) business that provides many of the world’s leading
brands, companies, agencies, industry bodies and governments
with time-critical and highly relevant media intelligence to
assist them to make more informed and timely business and
communications decisions, including strategies to protect,
cultivate or enhance brand reputation and image. In addition,
the group offers a suite of market-leading Value Added Services
(‘VAS’) including social media monitoring and analysis services,
quantitative and qualitative insight media reports and bespoke
media contact databases.
This service is underpinned by the group’s proprietary software
and systems that capture, enrich and interpret data from
mainstream, online and social media sources, to alert its clients
to what is being said about their organisations, competitors and
industry “as the news breaks”.

Business objectives and cash use
Isentia Group Limited has used cash and cash equivalents,
held at the time of listing, in a way consistent with its stated
business objectives.

Significant changes in the state of affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the
group during the financial year.

Comparative year
On 7 March 2014, an interim dividend of $8,640,000 was paid
to the then shareholders of Isentia Holdings Pty Limited, as
noted in the IPO prospectus.
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Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

Name:

John Croll

Title:

Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director

Qualifications:

Member of the Public Relations Institute of Australia and the Institute of Company Directors

Experience and expertise:

John has been active in the media industry since 1982 and was appointed Chief Executive Officer
and Managing Director of Isentia (then Media Monitors) in 1999. Prior to his appointment, John
held sales and operational roles with Croll Communications and Media Monitors. John is a former
Executive Vice President of FIBEP, the International Federation of Press Clipping Bureaus and
is currently a Director of the International Association for the Measurement and Evaluation of
Communications (‘AMEC’). In addition to his industry appointments, he is Vice-President of the
Australian Paralympic Committee.

Likely developments and expected results of operations

Other current directorships:

None

In the next financial year (‘FY2016’), the group expects high single digit organic revenue growth with mid-teens organic Earnings
Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (‘EBITDA’) growth.

Former directorships (last 3 years):

None

Special responsibilities:

CEO

Interests in shares:

8,006,056 ordinary shares of which 214,398 are held indirectly

Interests in options:

583,090 options

Name:

Pat O’Sullivan

Title:

Independent Non-Executive Director

Qualifications:

Graduate of the Harvard Business School’s Advanced Management Program, member of Chartered
Accountant Australia and New Zealand and member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
Ireland

Experience and expertise:

Pat has over 30 years of international commercial and business management experience, including
holding various senior management and board positions. He is currently Chairman of HealthEngine.
com.au, as well as serving as a Director of Carsales.com Limited, iiNet Limited (resigned 24 August
2015), APN Outdoor Group Limited and Little Company of Mary Healthcare. Previously, Pat was
Chief Operating Officer and Finance Director of Nine Entertainment Co. as well as serving as
Chairman of NineMSN. Previous to this, he was the CFO of Optus, and has also held a number of
positions at Goodman Fielder, Burns, Philp & Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Other current directorships:

Carsales.com Limited, iiNet Limited (resigned 24 August 2015) and APN Outdoor Group Limited
(appointed November 2014)

Former directorships (last 3 years):

iSelect Limited (retired 17 April 2014)

Special responsibilities:

Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee (appointed 9 May 2014) and a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (appointed 8 July 2015)

Interests in shares:

29,412 ordinary shares

Interests in options:

None

The group is in process of entering into a definitive agreement to acquire King Content Pty Limited and its subsidiaries (King
Content). King Content is involved in content marketing services with the parent entity domiciled in Australia. The final acquisition
of this business will be subject to the group’s ability to negotiate acceptable terms and conditions and the approval of the Board of
Directors. The expected transaction value of the acquisition is $48,000,000. The effect of the King Content acquisition is expected to
be included in the financial report for the half year ended 31 December 2015.
Apart from the dividend declared as discussed above, no other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2015 that has
significantly affected, or may significantly affect the group’s operations, the results of those operations, or the group’s state of
affairs in future financial years.

King Content is expected to contribute an increase of circa 10% to the group’s consolidated FY2016 revenue, and be Earnings Per
share (‘EPS’) accretive in the range of high single digit.

Environmental regulation
The group is not subject to any significant environmental regulation under International, Australian Commonwealth or State law.

Information on directors
Name:

Doug Flynn

Title:

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Qualifications:

Degree in Chemical Engineering from the University of Newcastle and received a MBA with
distinction from the University of Melbourne

Experience and expertise:

Doug has over 30 years of international experience in the media and information and
communication technology industries, including holding various senior management and Board
positions. Previously, Doug was Chief Executive of newspaper publisher Davies Brothers Limited,
which was acquired by News Corporation in 1989, and in 1995 was appointed the Managing
Director of News International Plc. After leaving News International in 1998, Doug joined Aegis
Group Plc and was appointed as CEO in 1999, where he was instrumental in doubling the size of
the company and established a global market research business Synovate and internet services
business Isobar. From 2005 to 2008 Doug served as the Chief Executive of facilities management
provider Rentokil Initial Plc. Doug returned to Australia in 2008 and from 2008 to 2012 was a
consultant to and a Director of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Ltd, the leading private television
company in China.

Other current directorships:

NEXTDC Limited (Chairman), Konekt Limited (Chairman) and APN Outdoor Group Limited
(Chairman)(since November 2014)

Former directorships (last 3 years):

Seven West Media Limited (retired 1 September 2014)

Special responsibilities:

Member of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Interests in shares:

73,530 ordinary shares held indirectly

Interests in options:

None
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Name:

Fiona Pak-Poy

Title:

Independent Non-Executive Director

Qualifications:

Honours degree in Civil Engineering from The University of Adelaide and a MBA from Harvard
Business School

Experience and expertise:

Fiona brings significant experience gained particularly with technology companies. She is currently
a director of State Super Financial Services and also serves as a Director of Adelaide Research
& Innovation. Previously, she was a member of the Federal Government’s National Precincts
Board and Innovation Australia Board where she Chaired Australia’s Clean Technology Investment
Committee. Previously, Fiona was a General Partner of Innovation Capital, an Australian venture
capital fund that invested in Australian technology companies, including Audinate, Call Journey
and Opto Globo. She served as a Councillor of the Australian Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association ('AVCAL'). Prior to this, Fiona co-founded a catalogue and e-commerce business, was
a strategy consultant with The Boston Consulting Group, a Research and Development engineer at
Stratco and worked with consulting engineering firm Pak-Poy and Kneebone.

Other current directorships:

Company secretary
Nimesh Shah, CFO and Company Secretary, has over 15 years’ experience as an executive in the media and online industries, utilising
experience gained working across Australia, the UK and many parts of Asia. Much of Nimesh’s experience has been gained in
growing companies. Before working for Isentia, Nimesh was Global CFO for pioneering social networking site, Friendster. Nimesh
was also Finance Director at Fairfax Digital for seven years, playing an instrumental role in navigating the company into the world
of online publishing and transaction businesses. Prior to his appointment at Fairfax Digital, Nimesh worked at Dell Computers in the
UK, Arthur Andersen and Ernst & Young. Nimesh holds a MBA from the Australian Graduate School of Management and a Bachelor
of Commerce with Merit from the University of New South Wales. Nimesh is also a member of Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand.

Meetings of directors
The number of meetings of the company’s Board of Directors (‘the Board’) and of each Board committee held during the year ended
30 June 2015, and the number of meetings attended by each director were:

None

Former directorships (last 3 years):

None

Special responsibilities:

Chair of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee

Interests in shares:

29,412 ordinary shares held indirectly

Interests in options:

None

Name:

Dr Geoff Raby

Title:

Independent Non-Executive Director

Qualifications:

Bachelor of Economics (Hons), Master of Economics and PhD degrees from La Trobe University

Experience and expertise:

Geoff is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Geoff Raby & Associates, a Beijing-based business
advisory firm. He is also Co-Chair of Corrs Chambers Westgarth’s China Business Practice, Senior
Advisor to Kreab Gavin Anderson, and Vice Chairman of Macquarie Group China. Additionally, Geoff
is a Vice Chancellor’s Professorial Fellow at Monash University and a member of the Advance Global
Advisory Board and the International Education Advisory Council by the Minister of Education,
Employment and Workplace Relations. Geoff was the Australian Ambassador to China from 2007
to 2011 and Deputy Secretary of the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade from 2002 to 2006.
Between 1993 and 1995, Geoff was head of the Trade Policy Issues Division of the OECD, Paris.

Other current directorships:

SmartTrans Holdings Limited (Chairman), Fortescue Metals Group Limited, OceanaGold Corporation,
Yancoal Australia Limited and YPB Limited

Former directorships (last 3 years):

None

Special responsibilities:

Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee (appointed 9 July 2015)

Interests in shares:

29,412 ordinary shares

Interests in options:

None

NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

FULL BOARD

AUDIT AND RISK
COMMITTEE

ATTENDED

HELD

ATTENDED

HELD

ATTENDED

HELD

Doug Flynn

8

8

3

3

4

4

John Croll

8

8

-

-

-

-

Pat O'Sullivan

8

8

-

-

4

4

Fiona Pak-Poy

8

8

3

3

4

4

Dr Geoff Raby

8

8

3

3

-

-

Held: represents the number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the relevant committee.

‘Other current directorships’ quoted above are current directorships for ASX listed entities only and excludes directorships of all
other types of entities, unless otherwise stated.
‘Former directorships (last 3 years)’ quoted above are directorships held in the last 3 years for ASX listed entities only and excludes
directorships of all other types of entities, unless otherwise stated.
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Remuneration report (audited)

Non-executive directors’ remuneration

On behalf of the Board of Directors I take pleasure in presenting the remuneration report for Isentia Group Limited (the ‘company’)
and its subsidiaries (‘Isentia’ or ‘group’) for the year ended 30 June 2015. The primary objective of this report is to set out the
remuneration of Key Management Personnel (‘KMP’) and provide a perspective on the underlying philosophy and principles that
underpin the structure and design of remuneration arrangements in the group.

Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the directors
as well as the need to attract and retain non-executive directors of suitable calibre. Non-executive directors’ fees and payments
are reviewed annually by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may, from
time to time, receive advice from independent remuneration consultants (refer to ‘Use of remuneration consultants’ below) to
ensure non-executive directors’ fees and payments are appropriate and in line with the market. The chairman’s fees are determined
independently to the fees of other non-executive directors based on comparative roles in the external market. The chairman is not
present at any discussions relating to determination of his own remuneration.

In developing remuneration arrangements for KMP, the Board has and will continue to seek input from external parties including
legal counsel, proxy advisors and institutional shareholders.
The remuneration report, which has been audited, outlines KMP remuneration arrangements in accordance with the requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001 and its Regulations.
KMP are defined in AASB124 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ as “those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise)” and are
listed in section ‘2. KMP remuneration disclosures’ below.
The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:
1. Principles used to determine the remuneration framework
• Non-executive directors remuneration
• Executive remuneration
• Group performance and link to remuneration
• Use of remuneration experts
2. KMP remuneration disclosures
3. Service contracts
4. Share-based compensation
5. KMP interests in Isentia securities and other information

1. Principles used to determine the remuneration framework
The company’s remuneration philosophy is to provide a clear link between company strategy, shareholder returns and remuneration
awarded. The remuneration structure and policies deriving from this are designed to help build, retain and motivate our talented
leadership team to deliver growing and sustainable returns for shareholders. We recognise that the performance of the group
depends on the quality of its directors and KMP.
The objective of the group’s remuneration framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and appropriate for the
results delivered. The framework seeks to align remuneration with the achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of
value for shareholders. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ensures remuneration satisfies the following criteria of good
remuneration governance practices:
•
•
•
•

competitiveness and reasonableness
acceptability to shareholders
performance linkage / alignment of KMP compensation
transparency

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining and reviewing remuneration arrangements for
directors and KMP. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors and
meets as required throughout the year. This year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met three times. The CEO attends
committee meetings by invitation, where management input is required. The CEO is not present during any discussions related to
his own remuneration arrangements.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has structured a remuneration framework set out in the table below that is market
competitive and complementary to Isentia’s strategic objectives.

There was no change to fees paid to non-executive directors in 2015, which was the first full term the directors served in office. The
non-executive directors were appointed on 9 May 2014, just before Isentia listed on the ASX in June 2014, and therefore the FY2014
remuneration figures reported for non-executive directors related to the 7 week period from appointment to 30 June 2014.
Under the company’s Constitution and as set out in the 2014 IPO Prospectus, total aggregate remuneration available to nonexecutive directors is set at $900,000 per annum. ASX listing rules require that proposed increases to the aggregate non-executive
director remuneration cap are subject to shareholder approval. Non-executive director fees were within this approved limit for
FY2015 and the Board does not propose any increase to the fee cap for FY2016.
The remuneration of non-executive directors is fixed and does not contain any variable component. Non-executive director
remuneration consists of directors’ fees and committee fees and is not linked to company performance. The non-executive directors
are reimbursed for expenses incurred in performing their duties as directors of Isentia. The Chairman of the Board attends all
committee meetings but does not receive committee fees in respect of his role as member of any committee.
Non-executive directors do not receive retirement benefits other than superannuation and they do not participate in any incentive
programs. Consistent with good governance principles, the absence of performance-linked remuneration to non-executive directors
serves to protect the independence of the directors and ensures that their interests remain properly aligned with those of Isentia’s
shareholders and not senior management.
Whilst directors are not required under the Constitution to hold any shares, all have interests in Isentia securities, either directly or
indirectly (refer to section ‘5. KMP interests in Isentia securities and other information’ below). We believe this demonstrates support
for the company and facilitates alignment between board directors and long term shareholder wealth outcomes.
If non-executive directors are required to perform services for the company outside of the scope of ordinary duties of a director, the
company may compensate the director for additional responsibilities or workload incurred during the reporting period. No directors
provided any services outside of the normal course of duty in FY2015 and hence no additional director fees have been paid.
Executive remuneration
The group aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration based on their position and level of responsibility, which
has both fixed and variable components.
For the year ended 30 June 2015, the executive remuneration framework consisted of fixed remuneration and short and longterm incentives as outlined below. The group aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration appropriate to their
position, responsibilities and performance within the group, whilst ensuring alignment with an ASX listed peer group.
The long term incentive plan (‘LTIP’) was introduced in 2014 to focus KMP on growth opportunities over the long term whilst
building and retaining critical skills in the group. Since its inception, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee have extended
participation in the LTIP to broaden engagement throughout the senior executive team. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee monitor the effectiveness of this scheme and will continue to do so in order to drive strategic goals of the group. It is the
intention of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to further extend and broaden participation in the LTIP over the coming
years.

In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive directors and executive remunerations are
dealt with separately.
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Remuneration report (audited) - Continued
COMPONENT OF
REMUNERATION

HOW THIS OPERATES
IN PRACTICE

TARGET AND MAXIMUM
OPPORTUNITY

PURPOSE AND LINK TO
ISENTIA STRATEGY

CHANGE

To provide cash benefits
which are competitive
with equivalent roles
in peer companies and
offer base packages that
are designed to attract
and retain high calibre
employees.
To reward performance
relative to expectations
based on individual role
and responsibility.

Increase in base salary
for CEO, CFO and CE
ANZ was the result of a
market review performed
by external remuneration
consultant at the end of
FY2014 in light of the IPO
to align with ASX peer
companies.

STI awards are only
provided where
executives meet or
exceed Key Performance
Indicators (‘KPIs’), which
are set annually and
are components of the
group’s annual budget
and business plan.
Financial KPIs account for
75% - 80% of available
STI and include revenue,
EBITA, EBITDA and NPATA
targets. No STI will be
paid if these targets are
not equalled or exceeded.
Non-financial KPIs making
up the remaining 20%
- 25% of available STI
include strategic business
objectives such as Net
Promotor Score (‘NPS’),
product penetration
targets, subscription
based revenue metrics
and developing internal
processes and reporting
suitable for the listed
environment. These are
assessed through the
year-end performance
review process.

STI payments are not paid
to the CEO and CFO until
finalisation and release
of the audited results for
the group.

FIXED
Base salary, allowances,
superannuation and
salary sacrificed benefits.

Base salary is paid in
cash or fringe benefits
(such as motor vehicle).
Superannuation is paid at
the statutory rate. Fixed
remuneration is reviewed
annually.

n/a

VARIABLE
Short Term
Incentive Plan (‘STIP’)

STIs are paid in cash to
reward eligible executives
on delivering against
annual key performance
indicators that are linked
to the company’s growth
strategy and are expected
to deliver benefits to
shareholders.
The Board also has
discretion to reward for
outstanding performance.

16 Isentia Group Limited > Annual Report 2015

CEO target 50% of Total
Fixed Remuneration
(‘TFR’), with a maximum
of 75% of TFR.
CFO target 40% of TFR,
with a maximum of 60%
of TFR.
No portion of STIP will be
payable to the CEO and
CFO unless all financial
targets are equalled or
exceeded.
Other executive KMP
target 30% of base salary,
with a maximum 60% of
base salary.
For other executive KMP
no portion of STIP will
be payable unless at
least one of the financial
targets are equalled or
exceeded.

COMPONENT OF
REMUNERATION

HOW THIS OPERATES
IN PRACTICE

TARGET AND MAXIMUM
OPPORTUNITY

PURPOSE AND LINK TO
ISENTIA STRATEGY

CHANGE

Long Term Incentive Plan
(‘LTIP’)

The LTIP was introduced
in June 2014 to provide
a focus on long term
growth opportunities.
Each offer made
under the LTIP to date
represents 50% of the
TFR of the recipient.
It is the intention of
the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
to extend participation
in the LTIP where it
has been assessed as
being an effective tool in
engaging the executive
and driving the medium
to longer term goals of
the group.
Any future offer of
securities to the CEO/MD
will require shareholder
approval.

50% of TFR per annum.
All options have total
shareholder return (‘TSR’)
and earnings per share
(‘EPS’) hurdles assessed
over a three year
performance period.
All options granted
were issued for nil
consideration and will
vest subject to the
satisfaction of agreed
performance conditions
which will be tested over
a performance period
of three years, with no
opportunity for re-test.
Existing options have
accelerated vesting
conditions which may
be triggered through a
corporate control event.
Other than the June
2014 offers, which were
specific to the IPO, all
unvested options lapse
on resignation of the
participant.

LTI awards are designed
to motivate participants
to achieve medium to
long term strategic goals
and provide reward
where Isentia delivers
better shareholder value
than its comparator
group (with reference
to the total shareholder
return condition) and/or
delivers earnings growth
for its shareholders (‘EPS
condition’).

At the time of inception
only the CEO and CFO
participated in the
program, which has
now grown to include
five members of senior
staff. It is the intention
of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
to continue to extend and
broaden participation in
the LTIP over the coming
years.
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Pro-forma amounts have been included in the table above as the Board are of the opinion that these most appropriately represent
the group’s underlying current and historical performance. FY2011 to FY2013 figures are presented as per the IPO Prospectus dated
May 2014 and the FY2014 Pro-forma Actual are presented as per the FY2014 Financial Results Presentation dated August 2014

Group performance and link to remuneration
Isentia’s strong share price performance can be seen in the way it has outperformed the ASX All Ordinaries Accumulation index (All
Ords) since listing on 5 June 2014.
200

The KPIs driving STI payments for the year ended 30 June 2015 were revenue, EBITDA, NPATA and a personal performance rating
measured though the formal year-end performance review process. These financial metrics have been applied as they are regarded
to be the most appropriate financial indicators of Isentia’s communicated growth strategy, which includes increasing the average
revenue per customer. Shareholders may wish to note that the NPATA measure has been selected to adjust for prior period tax
unders/overs related to Isentia’s IPO in mid-2014.
The company listed on the ASX on the 5 June 2014. Dividends paid and/or declared in FY2014 and FY2015 are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. There have been no returns of capital made or proposed by the Board since the listing.

180

ASX 300
Inclusion

160

a. Proforma staff costs for FY2011 to FY2014 have been adjusted for a reclassification between other expenses and employee
benefit expense to conform with the presentation adopted in FY2015.
b. The group listed on the ASX on 5 June 2014, therefore TSR for FY2014 is for the period 5 June 2014 to 30 June 2014.
c. Proforma Actual EPS number for 2014 is calculated based on actual proforma NPAT of $12.8 million and 200,000,001 ordinary
shares on issue as at 30 June 2014.
d. Proforma Actual EBITDA for FY2014 is calculated by adjusting statutory EBITDA of $18.5 million for restructuring and acquisition
costs ($3.9 million), listed company costs ($1.2 million), offer costs ($9.1 million) and foreign exchange (gains)/losses ($0.7
million).
e. Proforma Actual NPAT for FY2014 is calculated by adjusting statutory NPAT of ($18.4m) for net finance costs ($12.2 million), offer
costs ($9.1 million), restructuring and acquisitions costs ($3.9 million), listed company costs ($1.2 million) and other adjustments
($7.2 million).

FY15 H1
Result

FY14
Result

140

IPO
120

Further detail around executive performance achieved pursuant to the FY2015 STI program is provided below:
FY2015 STI Financial performance achieved

100

80
4 Jun 14

4 Jul 14

ISD

4 Aug 14

4 Sept 14

4 Oct 14

4 Nov 14

4 Dec 14

4 Jan 15

4 Feb 15

4 Mar 15

4 Apr 15

4 May 15

4 Jun 15

EXECUTIVE

METRIC

WEIGHTING
(% OF TOTAL STI OPPORTUNITY)

PERFORMANCE OUTCOME

John Croll

Revenue

37.5%

Above Target

NPATA

37.5%

Above Target

Revenue

37.5%

Above Target

NPATA

37.5%

Above Target

Revenue

40.0%

Above Target

EBITDA

40.0%

Above Target

Nimesh Shah

All Ords

Sean Smith

The table below shows the revenue and EBITDA growth over the past 5 years:
PRO-FORMA
FY2011

PRO-FORMA
FY2012

PRO-FORMA
FY2013

UNAUDITED
PRO-FORMA
ACTUAL FY2014

Revenue $m

92.8

103.9

103.0

110.6

127.3

EBITDA $m (d)

20.1

22.8

22.9

30.9

41.9

TSR (b)

-

-

-

15.7%

60.2%

EPS (cents/share) (c)

-

-

-

6.4

9.8

1.2

7.8

7.0

12.8

19.6

45.0

51.4

51.2

50.3

52.5

48.4%

49.4%

49.7%

45.5%

41.2%

NPAT $m (e)
Staff costs $m (a)
Staff costs to revenue ratio
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As indicated above, the reported executives that received an FY2015 STI payment exceeded both the Revenue and NPATA
performance targets that were set at the beginning of the financial year.
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The options do not carry dividend or voting rights prior to vesting and exercise. Participants must not sell, transfer, encumber, hedge
or otherwise deal with the options.

FY2015 STI Non-financial performance achieved
EXECUTIVE

WEIGHTING
(% OF TOTAL STI OPPORTUNITY)

PERFORMANCE ACHIEVED

Use of remuneration consultants

John Croll

25%

Implementation and management of a governance structure suitable
for a listed company; outsourcing of press production to lower cost
locations; and contribution to reducing the proportion of Software-as-aService (SaaS) volume-based mainstream media revenue.

Nimesh Shah

25%

Contribution to reducing the proportion of Software-as-a-Service (SaaS)
volume-based mainstream media revenue; implementing structures
and resources to execute the roles of Company Secretary and the
investor relations function; and audit and risk support and reporting
requirements.

Sean Smith

20%

The performance period and applicable performance conditions for any future LTI offers will be determined by the Board and
specified in the relevant offer document.

Delivery of effective and excellent customer service levels that exceed
client needs across ANZ.

The non-financial performance metrics applied for the FY2015 period were designed to both drive Isentia’s growth strategy and
consider the efforts and tasks required in establishing the company as a newly listed ASX constituent. These executives either met
or exceeded their individual performance targets for the FY2015 period.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2015 no fees were paid to external remuneration consultants. In FY2014 Egan &
Associates were engaged to review remuneration recommendations regarding the benchmarking of non-executive and executive
remuneration. Fees paid for this engagement were $55,550. Fees for other services paid to Egan & Associates in FY2014 were
$12,000.

2. KMP remuneration disclosures
Details of the remuneration of the KMP of the group are set out in the tables below.
Changes in the management team during the year and the reassessment of KMP have resulted in some changes between KMP
listed in FY2014 and those listed in FY2015. The Board has determined for FY2015 that other than directors and the CFO, all KMP are
chief executive of a business unit
All directors and executives listed below were considered KMP for the year ended 30 June 2015, except as noted. All non-executive
directors are independent. There were no changes to KMP after 30 June 2015 and before the date of this report.

Long Term Incentives (‘LTIP’)

The KMP of the group consisted of the following directors:

The performance conditions must be satisfied in order for the options to vest and become exercisable. The performance conditions
are based upon the group’s relative total shareholder return (‘TSR’) and its earnings per share (‘EPS’) compound annual growth rate
(‘CAGR’) over the performance period (equally-weighted), which the Board believes provide appropriate long term alignment with
shareholders. As described in the table below, there is a minimum threshold at which any options will vest, which the Board believes
provides the right incentive to achieve suitable growth.

•
•
•
•
•

The group’s TSR over the performance period will be assessed against the TSRs of a ‘Comparator Group’ defined at the date of grant,
which relate to companies in the S&P/ASX200 Index (excluding those in the Financials, Materials and Energy sectors).

And the following executives:

The percentage of options that vest and become exercisable, if any, will be determined by reference to the TSR and EPS vesting
schedules, summarised as follows:
TSR PERFORMANCE RELATIVE TO TSR COMPARATOR GROUP

% OF TSR OPTIONS THAT BECOME EXERCISABLE

Less than the 50th percentile

Nil

50th percentile (threshold performance)

50%

Greater than 50th percentile but less than 75th percentile

Straight-line pro-rata vesting between 50% and 100%

Greater than or equal to 75th percentile (stretch)

100%

CAGR OF EPS OVER THE PERFORMANCE PERIOD

% OF EPS OPTIONS THAT BECOME EXERCISABLE

Less than 7%

Nil

7% (threshold performance)

50%

Between 7% and 17%

Straight-line pro-rata vesting between 50% and 100%

Above 17% (stretch performance)

100%

•
•
•
•

Doug Flynn - Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director
John Croll - CEO and Managing Director
Pat O’Sullivan - Independent Non-Executive Director
Fiona Pak-Poy - Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr Geoff Raby - Independent Non-Executive Director

Nimesh Shah - Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
Sean Smith - Chief Executive, Australia and New Zealand
Cameron Buckley - Chief Executive, Asia (resigned 15 May 2015)
David Liu – Chief Executive Asia (appointed 1 June 2015)

Any options that remain unvested at the end of the performance period will lapse immediately. The Participant must exercise any
vested options within 12 months of vesting. After 12 months, any unexercised options will lapse. The Participant will be entitled to
receive one share for each option that vests and is exercised. The Board retains discretion to make an equivalent cash payment in
lieu of providing shares to the participant.
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Equity settled remuneration represents one third of the value of options granted in FY2015. Total value of options granted will be
apportioned over three years in line with the performance period of the options granted.

Details of the remuneration of the KMP of the group are set out in the tables below:

SHORT-TERM BENEFITS

POSTEMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS

LONG-TERM
BENEFITS

SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS

SUPERANNUATION
$

EMPLOYEE
BENEFIT
$

EQUITYSETTLED
$

TOTAL
$

SHORT-TERM BENEFITS

CASH SALARY
AND FEES
$

STI
$

NONMONETARY
$

Doug Flynn

180,000

–

–

17,100

–

–

197,100

Pat O'Sullivan

100,000

–

–

9,500

–

–

109,500

Fiona Pak-Poy

100,000

–

–

9,500

–

–

109,500

Dr Geoff Raby

90,000

–

–

8,550

–

–

98,550

2015

Non-Executive
Directors:

623,525

390,000

–

18,783

10,357

106,667

1,149,332

SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS

CASH SALARY
AND FEES
$

STI
$

NONMONETARY
$

SUPERANNUATION
$

EMPLOYEE
BENEFIT
$

EQUITYSETTLED
$

Doug Flynn*

21,462

–

–

1,985

–

–

23,447

Pat O'Sullivan*

11,923

–

–

1,103

–

–

13,026

Fiona Pak-Poy*

11,923

–

–

1,103

–

–

13,026

Dr Geoff Raby*

10,731

–

–

993

–

–

11,724

494,568

205,833

–

17,775

10,371

–

728,547

2014

TOTAL
$

Non-Executive
Directors:

John Croll

Other Key Management Personnel:

Other Key Management Personnel:
Nimesh Shah

403,525

205,000

–

18,783

6,697

70,000

704,005

Sean Smith

270,000

127,440

–

18,783

4,494

48,131

468,848

Cameron Buckley*

235,363

–

–

18,783

3,923

–

258,069

35,939

–

–

388

–

–

36,327

2,038,352

722,440

–

120,170

25,471

224,798

3,131,231

David Liu**

LONG-TERM
BENEFITS

Executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

John Croll

POSTEMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS

* Cameron Buckley resigned 15 May 2015. He was not provided with any form of termination payment upon cessation of
employment with Isentia.
** David Liu appointed 1 June 2015, therefore remuneration figures reported are for 1 month only.

Nimesh Shah

342,646

143,131

–

17,775

6,962

–

510,514

Joe De Battista

277,757

92,146

–

17,775

4,417

–

392,095

Sean Smith

238,130

98,880

–

17,775

4,000

–

358,785

Cameron
Buckley**

328,320

14,498

–

17,775

4,363

–

364,956

Lane Cipriani

200,000

70,040

–

17,775

3,333

–

291,148

1,937,460

624,528

–

111,834

33,446

–

2,707,268

* Remuneration from 9 May 2014, date of appointment as non-executive director
** Remuneration includes expatriate costs such as housing and travel allowance
Non-executive directors do not receive incentive payments and do not participate in the company’s incentive programs. For
executive directors and other KMP, the proportion of remuneration linked to performance and the fixed proportion are as set out in
the following table. It is noted that the LTIP was introduced in 2014 at the time of listing and therefore all offers relate to the LTIP’s
first year of operation. The LTI proportion of remuneration noted in the table below equates to one third of the value of options
granted in FY2015. Based on Australian accounting treatment, total value of options granted will be apportioned over three years
in line with the performance period of the options granted. As such, shareholders should note that the LTI proportions will grow as
new offers are made
FIXED REMUNERATION
Name

AT RISK - STI

AT RISK - LTI

2015

2014

2015

2014

2015

2014

57%

72%

34%

28%

9%

–%

Nimesh Shah

61%

72%

29%

28%

10%

–%

Sean Smith

63%

76%

27%

24%

10%

–%

Cameron Buckley

100%

96%

–%

4%

–%

–%

David Liu*

100%

–%

–%

–%

–%

–%

Executive Directors:
John Croll
Other Key Management Personnel:

* David Liu was appointed 1 June 2015, therefore only 1 month of remuneration has been included, all of which was fixed. David will
have a proportion of his FY2016 remuneration at risk.
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The number and value of options over ordinary shares granted vested and lapsed by KMP as part of compensation during the year
ended 30 June 2015 are set out below:

3. Service contracts

VALUE OF OPTIONS GRANTED
DURING THE YEAR

Remuneration and other terms of employment for KMP are formalised in service contracts. All executive KMP service contracts
provide for immediate termination in the event of serious misconduct. Details of other key terms are summarised below:
NOTICE PERIOD FOR TERMINATION

NUMBER OF OPTIONS
GRANTED DURING THE YEAR

NUMBER OF OPTIONS
LAPSED DURING THE YEAR

2015
$

2014
$

2015
NUMBER

2014
NUMBER

2015
NUMBER

2014
NUMBER

–

320,000

–

583,090

–

–

–

210,000

–

382,653

–

–

Sean Smith

144,392

–

135,643

–

–

–

Cameron Buckley*

143,581

–

134,881

–

134,881

–

Executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE KMP

CONTRACT TERM

BY EXECUTIVE

BY ISENTIA

John Croll

No fixed term

6 months

6 months

Nimesh Shah

No fixed term

3 months

3 months

Sean Smith

No fixed term

3 months

3 months

David Liu

No fixed term

3 months

3 months

John Croll
Other Key Management Personnel:
Nimesh Shah

No payments under the STIP or LTIP will be made in the event of an executive being terminated for cause.

* All options held by Cameron Buckley lapsed on his resignation on 15 May 2015

STI payments are not paid if the executive has ceased employment before the payment is approved. The Board retains discretion to
lapse or pro-rata unvested entitlements under the LTIP on the resignation of executive.

5. KMP interests in Isentia securities and other information

Minimum shareholding requirement
Whilst executives are not required under the company’s Constitution to hold any shares, all KMP (with the exception of David Liu)
have interests in Isentia securities (refer to section 5 ‘KMP interests in Isentia securities and other information’ below).

4. Share-based compensation
Issue of shares
There were no shares issued to directors or other KMP as part of compensation during the year ended 30 June 2015.

In accordance with Class Order 14/632, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to ‘key
management personnel equity instrument disclosures’, the following disclosures for shareholdings and option holdings relate only
to equity instruments in the company or its subsidiaries.
Shareholding
The number of shares in the company held during the financial year by each director and other members of key management
personnel of the group, including their personally related parties, is set out below: There were no shares received as part of KMP
remuneration during the year.

Options

ORDINARY SHARES

Options were granted to Sean Smith and Cameron Buckley during the year ended 30 June 2015, however all options issued to
Cameron Buckley lapsed on his resignation on 15 May 2015.
The terms and conditions of each grant of options over ordinary shares affecting remuneration of KMP in this financial year or
future reporting years are as follows:

GRANT DATE

VESTING DATE AND
EXERCISABLE DATE

EXPIRY DATE

EXERCISE PRICE

FAIR VALUE PER OPTION
AT GRANT DATE

16 June 2014

1 July 2017

30 June 2018

$2.04

$0.55

10 December 2014

1 July 2017

30 June 2018

$2.04

$1.06

The performance period, to which vesting of the options is subject, is from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2017. Further vesting conditions
relating to the performance period include total shareholder return and earnings per share hurdles.
Options granted carry no dividend or voting rights.

BALANCE AT THE
START OF THE
YEAR

ADDITIONS

DISPOSALS

BALANCE AT THE
END OF THE YEAR

Doug Flynn *

73,530

–

–

73,530

John Croll **

8,006,056

–

–

8,006,056

Pat O'Sullivan

29,412

–

–

29,412

Fiona Pak-Poy *

29,412

–

–

29,412

Dr Geoff Raby

29,412

–

–

29,412

Nimesh Shah *

821,137

–

–

821,137

Sean Smith

109,882

–

–

109,882

Cameron Buckley

130,435

–

(130,435)

–

9,229,276

–

(130,435)

9,098,841

* All are held indirectly
** Of which 214,398 are held indirectly
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Shares under option

The number of options over ordinary shares in the company held during the financial year by each director and other members of
key management personnel of the group, including their personally related parties, is set out below:

Unissued ordinary shares of Isentia Group Limited under option at the date of this report are as follows:

OPTIONS
BALANCE AT
THE START OF
THE YEAR

GRANTED

EXERCISED

LAPSED

BALANCE AT
THE END OF
THE YEAR

GRANT DATE

EXPIRY DATE

EXERCISE PRICE

NUMBER UNDER OPTION

16/06/2014

30/06/2018

$2.04

965,743

10/12/2014

30/06/2018

$2.04

341,348
1,307,091

Executive Directors:
John Croll

583,090

–

–

–

583,090

382,653

–

–

–

382,653

–

135,643

–

–

135,643

134,881

–

(134,881)

–

270,524

–

(134,881)

1,101,386

Other Key Management Personnel:
Nimesh Shah
Sean Smith
Cameron Buckley*
965,743

*All options held by Cameron Buckley lapsed on his resignation on 15 May 2015
None of the options have vested or are exercisable.
Other information
Isentia aspires to a high level of corporate governance, and as we continue our journey as a newly listed company we have sought
and will continue to seek feedback from stakeholders. We welcome feedback about how we can better convey our remuneration
policy and demonstrate how its implementation supports the company’s financial and strategic goals.
On behalf of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

No person entitled to exercise the options had or has any right by virtue of the option to participate in any share issue of the
company or of any other body corporate.

Shares issued on the exercise of options
There were no ordinary shares of Isentia Group Limited issued on the exercise of options during the year ended 30 June 2015 and
up to the date of this report.

Indemnity and insurance of officers
The company has indemnified the directors and executives of the company for costs incurred, in their capacity as a director or
executive, for which they may be held personally liable, except where there is a lack of good faith.
During the financial year, the company paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the directors and executives of the
company against a liability to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of
the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.

Indemnity and insurance of auditor
The company has not, during or since the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify the auditor of the company or any
related entity against a liability incurred by the auditor.
During the financial year, the company has not paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the auditor of the company or any
related entity.

Fiona Pak-Poy
Chair
20 August 2015
Sydney
This concludes the remuneration report, which has been audited.

Proceedings on behalf of the company
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the
company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of
the company for all or part of those proceedings.

Non-audit services
Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the financial year by the auditor are
outlined in note 25 to the financial statements.
The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the financial year, by the auditor (or by another person or
firm on the auditor’s behalf), is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act
2001.
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The directors are of the opinion that the services as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements do not compromise the external
auditor’s independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:
• all non-audit services have been reviewed and approved to ensure that they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the
auditor; and
• none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants issued by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, including reviewing or auditing
the auditor’s own work, acting in a management or decision-making capacity for the company, acting as advocate for the
company or jointly sharing economic risks and rewards.

Officers of the company who are former audit partners of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
There are no officers of the company who are former audit partners of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Rounding of amounts
The company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission,
relating to ‘rounding-off’. Amounts in this report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand
dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

Auditor’s independence declaration
A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 follows this Directors’
report.

Auditor
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.
On behalf of the directors

										
Grosvenor Place
225 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
PO Box N250 Grosvenor Place
Sydney NSW 1220 Australia
										
DX:
10307SSE
Tel:
+61 (0) 2 9322 7000
Fax:
+61 (0) 2 9322 7021
www.deloitte.com.au

The Board of Directors
Isentia Group Limited
219-241 Cleveland Street
Strawberry Hills
SYDNEY NSW 2012

20 August 2015

Dear Board Members,
Isentia Group Limited
In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to provide the following declaration of independence to
the directors of Isentia Group Limited.
As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of Isentia Group Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2015, I
declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:
(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation
to the audit; and
(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Doug Flynn				John Croll
Chairman					
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
20 August 2015
Sydney

Yours sincerely

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Sandeep Chadha
Partner
Chartered Accountants

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION
The financial statements cover Isentia Group Limited as a group consisting of Isentia
Group Limited (the ‘company’ or ‘parent entity’) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the ‘group’). The financial statements are presented in Australian
dollars, which is Isentia Group Limited’s functional and presentation currency.
Isentia Group Limited is a listed public company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and principal place of business is:
Level 3
219-241 Cleveland Street
Strawberry Hills NSW 2012
A description of the nature of the group’s operations and its principal activities are
included in the Directors’ report, which is not part of the financial statements.
The financial statements were authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution
of directors, on 20 August 2015.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2015
CONSOLIDATED

Revenue

CONSOLIDATED

NOTE

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

4

127,272

110,562

47

226

Other income
Expenses

NOTE

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Cash and cash equivalents

7

5,713

5,101

8

27,022

22,115

1,467

1,230

34,202

28,446

9

2,513

2,473

Intangibles

10

130,533

134,581

11

9,455

12,529

40

40

Assets
Current assets

Copyright, consumables and other direct purchases

(23,876)

(20,606)

Trade and other receivables

Employee benefits expense

(52,503)

(50,251)

Prepayments

Amortisation expenses

5

(12,500)

(11,084)

Total current assets

Depreciation expense

5

(1,092)

(1,279)

Non-current assets

Impairment of assets

5

-

(804)

(4,700)

(4,672)

-

(17,830)

Deferred tax assets

Occupancy costs
Net fair value movement on put/call option

Property, plant and equipment

Other expenses

5

(4,282)

(16,621)

Other

Finance costs

5

(2,405)

(14,997)

Total non-current assets

142,541

149,623

25,961

(27,356)

Total assets

176,743

178,069

(6,345)

8,950

19,616

(18,406)

Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense)/benefit
Income tax (expense)/benefit

6

Profit/(loss) after income tax expense for the year attributable to the owners of
Isentia Group Limited
Other comprehensive income

Liabilities
Trade and other payables

12

14,302

12,435

Derivative financial instruments

13

367

109

2,498

577

5,170

4,834

22,337

17,955

Current tax liabilities

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges taken to equity, net of tax

(388)

1,037

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations, net of tax

3,712

(1,011)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

3,324

26

22,940

(18,380)

CENTS

CENTS

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the owners of Isentia
Group Limited

Provisions

14

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

15

28,744

50,615

Derivative financial instruments

16

346

50

Deferred tax liabilities

17

8,603

9,225

Basic earnings per share

34

9.808

(12.429)

Provisions

18

757

1,116

Diluted earnings per share

34

9.798

(12.429)

Total non-current liabilities

38,450

61,006

Total liabilities

60,787

78,961

Net assets

115,956

99,108

Equity
Issued capital

19

403,662

403,852

Reserves

20

(251,781)

(255,403)

(35,925)

(49,341)

115,956

99,108

Accumulated losses
Total equity
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015		

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015				
ISSUED
CAPITAL
$’000

RESERVES
$’000

ACCUMULATED
LOSSES
$’000

TOTAL
EQUITY
$’000

CONSOLIDATED
Balance at 1 July 2013
Loss after income tax (expense)/benefit for the year

37,638

872

(22,295)

16,215

-

-

(18,406)

(18,406)

-

26

-

26

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

26

(18,406)

(18,380)

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Share buy-backs by Isentia Holdings Pty Limited
Group reorganisation (note 19)

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST)

136,835

119,444

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST)

(96,696)

(92,353)

40,139

27,091

47

186

Cash flows from operating activities

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs (note 19)

CONSOLIDATED
NOTE

403,852

-

-

403,852

(125)

-

-

(125)

(37,513)

(256,301)

-

(293,814)

Dividends paid (note 21)

-

-

(8,640)

(8,640)

Balance at 30 June 2014

403,852

(255,403)

(49,341)

99,108

Interest received
Other revenue

-

40

Interest and other finance costs paid

(2,268)

(12,977)

Income taxes paid

(1,996)

(1,599)

33

35,922

12,741

18

(222)

(437)

(42)

-

9

(1,003)

(1,154)

10

(4,153)

(2,878)

Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchase of business, net of cash acquired
Payments for security deposits
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payments for intangibles

ISSUED
CAPITAL
$’000

RESERVES
$’000

ACCUMULATED
LOSSES
$’000

TOTAL
EQUITY
$’000

CONSOLIDATED
Balance at 1 July 2014

Payment for purchase of asset acquisition

(1,690)

(9,598)

Payments to acquire non-controlling interest

-

(535)

Settlement of put/call options

-

(29,993)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

-

112

403,852

(255,403)

(49,341)

99,108

Proceeds from release of security deposits

Profit after income tax (expense)/benefit for the year

-

-

19,616

19,616

Net cash used in investing activities

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

-

3,324

-

3,324

Cash flows from financing activities

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

3,324

19,616

22,940

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs (note 19)

-

151

(7,110)

(44,332)

-

284,450

Share issue transaction costs

-

(14,989)

Proceeds from management shareholders loan

-

1,295

Proceeds of bridge loan

-

16,000

Proceeds of IPO facility loan

-

55,000

Proceeds from issue of shares

19

(190)

-

-

(190)

Share-based payments (note 35)

-

298

-

298

Dividends paid (note 21)

-

-

(6,200)

(6,200)

Repayment of loans and borrowings pre IPO

-

(80,725)

Balance at 30 June 2015

403,662

(251,781)

(35,925)

115,956

Repayment of IPO facility loan

-

(4,000)

Payments for share buy-backs

-

(125)

(6,200)

(8,640)

Dividends paid

21

Repayment of borrowings

(22,000)

-

Repayments of loans to shareholders

-

(47,020)

Repayments of leases

-

(43)

Payment to existing shareholders as part of capital restructure on IPO

19

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year
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7

-

(170,263)

(28,200)

30,940

612

(651)

5,101

5,752

5,713

5,101
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Significant accounting policies

Operating segments

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Operating segments are presented using the ‘management approach’, where the information presented is on the same basis as the
internal reports provided to the Chief Operating Decision Makers (‘CODM’). The CODM is responsible for the allocation of resources to
operating segments and assessing their performance.

New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted
The group has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) that are mandatory for the current reporting period. The adoption of these Accounting
Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial performance or position of the group.
Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted.
Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate for
for-profit oriented entities. These financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’).
Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as detailed in the accounting policies in this note.
Critical accounting estimates
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 2.
Parent entity information
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of the group only. Supplementary
information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 29.
Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Isentia Group Limited (‘company’
or ‘parent entity’) as at 30 June 2015 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Isentia Group Limited and its
subsidiaries together are referred to in these financial statements as the ‘group’.

Foreign currency translation
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Isentia Group Limited’s functional and presentation currency.
Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
financial year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss.
Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rates at the reporting date.
The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars using the average exchange rates, which
approximate the rates at the dates of the transactions, for the period. All resulting foreign exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income through the foreign currency reserve in equity.
The foreign currency reserve is recognised in profit or loss when the foreign operation or net investment is disposed of.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. The group recognises revenue when the
amount of the revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the group and specific
criteria have been met for each of the group’s operations as described below.
Revenue is recognised for the major business operation as follows:
Rendering of services
Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customers.
(i) Software as a Service: Revenue from providing customers access to group platforms is recognised in accordance with the terms
of the contracts provided in the subscription agreement.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

(ii) Value Added Service: For social media monitoring, revenue is recognised according to terms of engagement and when service
has been rendered. For analysis reports, revenue is recognised in proportion to their stage of completion, typically in accordance
with the achievement of contract milestones.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the group are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset.

The acquisition of common control subsidiaries is accounted for at book value. The acquisition of other subsidiaries is accounted
for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest, without the loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration transferred and the book value of the share of the noncontrolling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity attributable to the parent.
Where the group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, liabilities and non-controlling interest
in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences recognised in equity. The group recognises the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained together with any gain or loss in profit or loss.
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Interest

Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.
Income tax
The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on that period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences,
unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable.
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Trade and other receivables

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to be applied when the assets
are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted, except for:

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any provision for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement between 30 and 90 days.

• When the deferred income tax asset or liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting nor
taxable profits; or
• When the taxable temporary difference is associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, and the timing
of the reversal can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are written off by
reducing the carrying amount directly. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is raised when there is objective evidence
that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency
in payments (more than 60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable may be impaired. The amount of the
impairment allowance is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. Deferred tax assets
recognised are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxable profits will be available for the carrying
amount to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that there are
future taxable profits available to recover the asset.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities; and they relate to the same taxable authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to settle simultaneously.
Isentia Group Limited (the ‘head entity’) and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax consolidated
group under the tax consolidation regime. The head entity and each subsidiary in the tax consolidated group continue to account for
their own current and deferred tax amounts. The tax consolidated group has applied the ‘separate taxpayer within group’ approach
in determining the appropriate amount of taxes to allocate to members of the tax consolidated group.
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the head entity also recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) and
the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from each subsidiary in the tax consolidated
group.
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts receivable
from or payable to other entities in the tax consolidated group. The tax funding arrangement ensures that the intercompany charge
equals the current tax liability or benefit of each tax consolidated group member, resulting in neither a contribution by the head
entity to the subsidiaries nor a distribution by the subsidiaries to the head entity.
Current and non-current classification
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or the
asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the
purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or there is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment.
Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at each reporting date. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
Derivatives are classified as current or non-current depending on the expected period of realisation.
Cash flow hedges
Cash flow hedges are used to cover the group’s exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to particular risks associated
with a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment which could affect profit or loss. The effective portion of the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument is recognised directly in equity, whilst the ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts taken
to equity are transferred out of equity and included in the measurement of the hedged transaction when the forecast transaction
occurs.
Cash flow hedges are tested for effectiveness on a regular basis both retrospectively and prospectively to ensure that each hedge is
highly effective and continues to be designated as a cash flow hedge. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
amounts recognised in equity are transferred to profit or loss.
If the hedging instrument is sold, terminated, expires, exercised without replacement or rollover, or if the hedge becomes ineffective
and is no longer a designated hedge, the amounts previously recognised in equity remain in equity until the forecast transaction
occurs.
Investments and other financial assets
Investments and other financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs are included as part of the initial
measurement, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. They are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value depending on their classification. Classification is determined based on the purpose of the acquisition and
subsequent reclassification to other categories is restricted.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets
The group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence includes significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor; a breach of contract
such as default or delinquency in payments; the lender granting to a borrower concessions due to economic or legal reasons that
the lender would not otherwise do; it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset; or observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
estimated future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment allowance for loans and receivables carried at amortised cost is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. If there is
a reversal of impairment, the reversal cannot exceed the amortised cost that would have been recognised had the impairment not
been made and is reversed to profit or loss.

amortised and are subsequently measured at cost less any impairment. Finite life intangible assets are subsequently measured
at cost less amortisation and any impairment. The gains or losses recognised in profit or loss arising from the derecognition of
intangible assets are measured as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset.
The method and useful lives of finite life intangible assets are reviewed annually. Changes in the expected pattern of consumption
or useful life are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation method or period.
Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of a business. Goodwill is not amortised. Instead, goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are taken to profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed.
Customer relationships and contracts
Customer contracts acquired in a business combination are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected
benefit, being their finite useful lives of between five and ten years.

Property, plant and equipment

Software, research and capitalised development

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Research costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Development costs are capitalised when it is probable that
the project will be a success considering its commercial and technical feasibility; the group is able to use or sell the asset; the
group has sufficient resources; and intent to complete the internal development and their costs can be measured reliably. These
capitalised costs and other software costs, purchased from third parties, are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of their expected benefit, being their finite useful lives of between two and four years.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and equipment over their
expected useful lives as follows:
Leasehold improvements		
Furniture and fittings		
Office equipment			
Computer equipment		

3-5 years
3-13 years
3-7 years
2-3 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
Leasehold improvements and plant and equipment under lease are depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to the group.
Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an
assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.
A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to the ownership of leased assets, and operating leases, under which the lessor effectively retains substantially
all such risks and benefits.
Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability are established at the fair value of the leased assets, or if lower, the
present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are allocated between the principal component of the lease liability and
the finance costs, so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Brands
Brands acquired in a business combination are not amortised, on the basis of indefinite life, which is reassessed every year. Instead,
brands are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the present
value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to form a cash-generating
unit.
Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of the financial year and which are
unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured
and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
Borrowings

Leased assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Operating lease payments, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Put/call options

Intangible assets

Put/call options are recognised as financial liabilities and initially measured at the estimated net present value of the expected
exercise price of the put option. Subsequent changes in recognised value are recorded in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination, other than goodwill, are initially measured at their fair value at the
date of the acquisition. Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. Indefinite life intangible assets are not
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Finance costs
Finance costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset. All other finance costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
the group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate specific to the liability. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.
Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled.
Other long-term employee benefits
Employee benefits not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on corporate bonds with terms to maturity and
currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
Defined contribution superannuation expense
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Share-based payments
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees.
Equity-settled transactions are awards of shares, or options over shares, that are provided to employees in exchange for the
rendering of services. Cash-settled transactions are awards of cash for the exchange of services, where the amount of cash is
determined by reference to the share price.
The cost of equity-settled transactions are measured at fair value on grant date. Fair value is independently determined using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution, the
share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest
rate for the term of the option, together with non-vesting conditions that do not determine whether the group receives the services
that entitle the employees to receive payment. No account is taken of any other vesting conditions.
The cost of equity-settled transactions are recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting
period. The cumulative charge to profit or loss is calculated based on the grant date fair value of the award, the best estimate of the
number of awards that are likely to vest and the expired portion of the vesting period. The amount recognised in profit or loss for
the period is the cumulative amount calculated at each reporting date less amounts already recognised in previous periods.
The cost of cash-settled transactions is initially, and at each reporting date until vested, determined by applying the Black-Scholes
option pricing model, taking into consideration the terms and conditions on which the award was granted. The cumulative charge to
profit or loss until settlement of the liability is calculated as follows:
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• during the vesting period, the liability at each reporting date is the fair value of the award at that date multiplied by the expired
portion of the vesting period.
• from the end of the vesting period until settlement of the award, the liability is the full fair value of the liability at the reporting
date.
All changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss. The ultimate cost of cash-settled transactions is the cash paid to settle
the liability.
Market conditions are taken into consideration in determining fair value. Therefore any awards subject to market conditions are
considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition has been met, provided all other conditions are satisfied.
If equity-settled awards are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the modification has not been made. An
additional expense is recognised, over the remaining vesting period, for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based compensation benefit as at the date of modification.
If the non-vesting condition is within the control of the group or employee, the failure to satisfy the condition is treated as a
cancellation. If the condition is not within the control of the group or employee and is not satisfied during the vesting period, any
remaining expense for the award is recognised over the remaining vesting period, unless the award is forfeited.
If equity-settled awards are cancelled, it is treated as if it has vested on the date of cancellation, and any remaining expense is
recognised immediately. If a new replacement award is substituted for the cancelled award, the cancelled and new award is treated
as if they were a modification.
Fair value measurement
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the fair value
is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the principal market; or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming they
act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its highest and best use.
Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, are
used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified, into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed at each reporting date and transfers between levels
are determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is either not
available or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market knowledge and
reputation. Where there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one period to another, an analysis is
undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the latest valuation and a comparison, where applicable,
with external sources of data.
Issued capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
Dividends
Dividends are recognised when declared during the financial year and no longer at the discretion of the company.
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’) and other similar taxes

Business combinations

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from
the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred is the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued or
liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree.
For each business combination, the non-controlling interest in the acquiree is measured at either fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All acquisition costs are expensed as incurred to profit or loss.
On the acquisition of a business, the group assesses the financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic conditions, the group’s operating or accounting
policies and other pertinent conditions in existence at the acquisition-date.
Where the business combination is achieved in stages, the group remeasures its previously held equity interest in the acquiree at
the acquisition-date fair value and the difference between the fair value and the previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from,
or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of financial position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which
are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority.
Rounding of amounts
The company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission,
relating to ‘rounding-off’. Amounts in this report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand
dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.
Comparatives

Contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at the acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Comparatives in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and notes to the financial statements have been
realigned to current year presentation. There has been no effect on the loss for the year.

The difference between the acquisition-date fair value of assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the consideration transferred and the fair value of any pre-existing investment in the acquiree is
recognised as goodwill. If the consideration transferred and the pre-existing fair value is less than the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired, being a bargain purchase to the acquirer, the difference is recognised as a gain directly in profit or loss by the
acquirer on the acquisition-date, but only after a reassessment of the identification and measurement of the net assets acquired,
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree, if any, the consideration transferred and the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquirer.

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory, have
not been early adopted by the group for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2015. The group’s assessment of the impact of
these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations, most relevant to the group, are set out below.

Business combinations are initially accounted for on a provisional basis. The acquirer retrospectively adjusts the provisional amounts
recognised and also recognises additional assets or liabilities during the measurement period, based on new information obtained
about the facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition-date. The measurement period ends on either the earlier of (i) 12
months from the date of the acquisition or (ii) when the acquirer receives all the information possible to determine fair value.
Corporate/group reorganisation - Isentia Group Limited and Isentia Holdings Pty Limited (comparative period)
Isentia Group Limited was incorporated on 14 January 2014. On 5 June 2014 the shareholders of the company undertook a
corporate reorganisation, in which Isentia Group Limited acquired Isentia Holdings Pty Limited. Under the principals of corporate
reorganisation, in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the financial statements of Isentia Group Limited
includes the historical financial information of Isentia Holdings Pty Limited for the period before the acquisition. This corporate
reorganisation did not represent a business combination in accordance with AASB 3 ‘Business Combination’. Instead the appropriate
accounting treatment for recognising this group structure was on the basis that the transaction was a form of capital reconstruction
and group reorganisation.

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted

AASB 9 Financial Instruments
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard replaces all previous
versions of AASB 9 and completes the project to replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. AASB 9
introduces new classification and measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost,
if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, which arise on
specified dates and solely principal and interest. All other financial instrument assets are to be classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss unless the entity makes an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity
instruments (that are not held-for-trading) in other comprehensive income (‘OCI’). For financial liabilities, the standard requires
the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the entity’s own credit risk to be presented in OCI (unless it would create an
accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the accounting treatment
with the risk management activities of the entity. New impairment requirements will use an ‘expected credit loss’ (‘ECL’) model to
recognise an allowance. Impairment will be measured under a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. The standard introduces
additional new disclosures. The group will adopt this standard from 1 July 2018 and the adoption of this standard is not expected to
have a material impact for the group.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of Isentia Group Limited, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial year.
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the after
income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average
number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on the group’s
current understanding of the tax law. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the carrying amounts, such
differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. Exposure Draft (ED 263) ‘Effective
Date of AASB 15’ proposes to defer the application date by one year (1 January 2018). The standard provides a single standard for
revenue recognition. The core principle of the standard is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. The standard will require: contracts (either written, verbal or implied) to be identified, together with
the separate performance obligations within the contract; determine the transaction price, adjusted for the time value of money
excluding credit risk; allocation of the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on a basis of relative stand-alone
selling price of each distinct good or service, or estimation approach if no distinct observable prices exist; and recognition of
revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied. Credit risk will be presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted
to revenue. For goods, the performance obligation would be satisfied when the customer obtains control of the goods. For services,
the performance obligation is satisfied when the service has been provided, typically for promises to transfer services to customers.
For performance obligations satisfied over time, an entity would select an appropriate measure of progress to determine how much
revenue should be recognised as the performance obligation is satisfied. Contracts with customers will be presented in an entity’s
statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship between the
entity’s performance and the customer’s payment. Sufficient quantitative and qualitative disclosure is required to enable users to
understand the contracts with customers; the significant judgements made in applying the guidance to those contracts; and any
assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer. The group expects to adopt this standard from 1 July
2018 but the impact of its adoption is yet to be assessed by the group.

Note 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets,
liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical
experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, management believes to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. The judgements,
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next financial year are discussed below.
Estimation of useful lives of assets
The group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant and
equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical innovations or some
other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or written down.
Goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets
The group tests annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate impairment, whether goodwill and
other indefinite life intangible assets have suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 1. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of assumptions, including estimated discount rates based on the current cost of capital and growth rates of the estimated
future cash flows.

Recovery of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the group considers it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Such deferred tax assets are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Note 3. Operating segments
Identification of reportable operating segments
The group has two geographical segments Australia and New Zealand (‘ANZ’) and Asia and a head office segment. These operating
segments are based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the Board of Directors (who are identified as the
Chief Operating Decision Makers (‘CODM’)) in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources. There is no
aggregation of operating segments.
The CODM reviews EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) adjusted for net fair value movement
on put/call options. The accounting policies adopted for internal reporting to the CODM are consistent with those adopted in the
financial statements.
The information reported to the CODM is on at least a monthly basis. The CODM does not regularly review segment assets and
segment liabilities. Refer to statement of financial position for assets and liabilities.
Types of revenue
The principal revenues are as follows:
Software-as-a-Service (‘SaaS’)
				
				

The group has developed and hosted a number of SaaS platforms, such as its 			
flagship Mediaportal that provide customers access to time critical and highly relevant 		
information as well as tools to analyse and report on media intelligence.

Value Added Services (‘VAS’)		
				

The group provides social media insights and monitoring, customised quantitative and 		
qualitative analysis, and in depth analysis required by customers.

Major customers
There are no major customers that contributed more than 10% of revenue to the group.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets
The group assesses impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets at each
reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the group and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. If an
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves fair value less costs of disposal or valuein-use calculations, which incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions.
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Note 3. Operating segments (continued)

Note 5. Expenses

Operating segment information
ANZ
$’000

ASIA
$’000

HEAD
OFFICE
$’000

CONSOLIDATED
TOTAL
$’000

2014
$'000

263

250

Profit/(loss) before income tax includes the following specific expenses:

CONSOLIDATED - 2015

Depreciation

Revenue
SaaS

85,997

13,092

-

99,089

VAS

16,985

11,198

-

28,183

Total sales revenue

102,982

24,290

-

127,272

Total revenue

102,982

24,290

-

127,272

46,490

5,664

(10,243)

41,911

EBITDA

2015
$'000

Depreciation and amortisation

(13,592)

Interest revenue

47

Finance costs

(2,405)

Profit before income tax expense

25,961

Income tax expense

(6,345)

Profit after income tax expense

19,616

ANZ
$’000

ASIA
$’000

HEAD
OFFICE
$’000

TOTAL
$’000

CONSOLIDATED - 2014

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fittings

111

113

Office equipment

84

136

634

780

1,092

1,279

Customer relationships and contracts

6,183

5,527

Acquired software

3,200

3,051

3,117

2,506

Total amortisation

12,500

11,084

Total depreciation and amortisation

13,592

12,363

Goodwill

-

42

Customer relationships and contracts

-

762

Total impairment

-

804

2,249

5,789

Interest and finance charges paid/payable to shareholders

-

6,798

Unwinding of the discount on put/call option

-

796

Loan establishment fee

156

1,614

Finance costs expensed

2,405

14,997

(89)

668

3,692

3,709

2,726

2,669

-

9,063

58

140

Computer equipment
Total depreciation
Amortisation

Internally generated software

Impairment

Finance costs

Revenue

Interest and finance charges paid/payable

SaaS

77,118

11,223

-

88,341

VAS

13,005

9,216

-

22,221

Total sales revenue

90,123

20,439

-

110,562

Total revenue

90,123

20,439

-

110,562

EBITDA

36,430

3,334

(21,312)

18,452

Depreciation and amortisation

(12,363)

Impairment of assets

(804)

Interest revenue

186

Finance costs

(14,997)

Net fair value movement on put/call option

(17,830)

Loss before income tax benefit

(27,356)

Income tax benefit

8,950

Loss after income tax benefit

(18,406)

Net foreign exchange loss
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Rental expense relating to operating leases
Minimum lease payments
Superannuation expense
Defined contribution superannuation expense
Other expenses included the following:
IPO transaction costs
Impairment of receivables
Bad and doubtful debt expense

Note 4. Revenue
CONSOLIDATED

Rendering of services

48 Isentia Group Limited > Annual Report 2015

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

127,272

110,562
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Note 6. Income tax expense/(benefit)

Note 8. Current assets - trade and other receivables
CONSOLIDATED

CONSOLIDATED

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Current tax expense

3,917

1,368

Deferred tax - origination and reversal of temporary differences

1,853

(10,318)

Trade receivables

Income tax expense/(benefit)

Prior year unders/overs
Aggregate income tax expense/(benefit)

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities (note 17)
Deferred tax - origination and reversal of temporary differences

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 30%

Tax uplift on IPO
Effect of tax rates in overseas jurisdictions
Current year tax loss not recognised
R & D Tax offset
Internally generated software post IPO
Tax exempt income
Prior year overs/unders
Sundry items
Income tax expense/(benefit)

1,901

987

593

551

27,022

22,115

3,478

(8,595)

(1,625)

(1,723)

1,853

(10,318)

25,961

(27,356)

7,788

(8,207)

Impairment of receivables
The ageing of the impaired receivables provided for above are as follows:
CONSOLIDATED

396

6,720

-

(6,306)

(360)

119

129

769

(2,717)

(2,094)

868

-

(334)

-

575

-

-

49

6,345

(8,950)

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

24

(1,334)

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

3 to 6 months overdue

97

71

Over 6 months overdue

99

161

196

232

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:
CONSOLIDATED
2015
$'000

2014
$'000

232

120

58

140

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable

(29)

-

Unused amounts reversed

(65)

(28)

Closing balance

196

232

Opening balance
Additional provisions recognised

Past due but not impaired
Customers with balances past due but without provision for impairment of receivables amount to $3,744,000 as at 30 June 2015
($3,888,000 as at 30 June 2014).
The group did not consider a credit risk on the aggregate balances after reviewing the credit terms of customers based on recent
collection practices.
The ageing of the past due but not impaired receivables are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED
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20,577

Security deposits

Note 7. Current assets - cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank

24,528
Other receivables

Amounts charged/(credited) directly to equity

Cash on hand

(232)

-

CONSOLIDATED

Deferred tax assets (note 11)

20,809

(196)

(8,950)

Tax effect amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Non-deductible expenses

24,724

575

Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense/(benefit) and tax at the statutory rate
Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense)/benefit

2014
$'000

6,345

Deferred tax included in income tax expense/(benefit) comprises:
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets (note 11)

2015
$'000

CONSOLIDATED

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

16

49

5,697

5,052

5,713

5,101

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

0 to 3 months overdue

3,595

3,356

3 to 6 months overdue

149

181

Over 6 months overdue

-

351

3,744

3,888
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Note 9. Non-current assets - property, plant and equipment

Note 10. Non-current assets - intangibles
CONSOLIDATED
2015
$'000

Leasehold improvements - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Furniture and fittings - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Office equipment - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Computer equipment - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

CONSOLIDATED
2014
$'000

3,979

3,562

(3,357)

(2,936)

622

626

2,086

1,922

(1,549)

(1,390)

537

532

2,417

2,141

(2,245)

(1,944)

172

197

11,718

11,088

(10,536)

(9,970)

1,182

1,118

2,513

2,473

Reconciliations

2015
$'000
Goodwill - at cost

73,534

71,341

Less: Accumulated impairment

(6,649)

(6,660)

66,885

64,681

Customer relationships and contracts - at cost
Less: Accumulated amortisation
Less: Accumulated impairment
Software and capitalised development - at cost
Less: Accumulated amortisation
Brands - at cost

71,323

69,630

(34,478)

(28,355)

(1,779)

(1,779)

35,066

39,496

33,295

28,649

(23,303)

(16,537)

9,992

12,112

18,590

18,292

130,533

134,581

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out below:

Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out below:
LEASEHOLD
IMPROVEMENTS
$’000

FURNITURE
AND FITTINGS
$’000

OFFICE
EQUIPMENT
$’000

COMPUTER
EQUIPMENT
$’000

TOTAL
$’000

Balance at 1 July 2013

619

604

313

1,178

2,714

Additions

256

48

24

826

1,154

Disposals

(7)

(4)

(3)

(98)

(112)

Exchange differences

8

(2)

(1)

(6)

(1)

Write off of assets

-

(1)

-

(2)

(3)

(250)

(113)

(136)

(780)

(1,279)

Balance at 30 June 2014

626

532

197

1,118

2,473

Additions

223

102

34

644

1,003

Disposals

(3)

(8)

(2)

(55)

(68)

Exchange differences

43

23

29

110

205

CONSOLIDATED

2014
$'000

Depreciation expense

Write off of assets
Depreciation expense
Balance at 30 June 2015

(4)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(8)

(263)

(111)

(84)

(634)

(1,092)

622

537

172

1,182

2,513

CONSOLIDATED
Balance at 1 July 2013
Additions
Additions through asset acquisition

GOODWILL
$’000

CUSTOMER
RELATIONSHIPS
AND CONTRACTS
$’000

SOFTWARE AND
CAPITALISED
DEVELOPMENT
$’000

BRANDS
$’000

TOTAL
$’000

65,507

35,434

14,925

18,311

134,177

-

-

2,815

63

2,878

-

10,158

-

-

10,158

Exchange differences

(784)

193

(71)

(82)

(744)

Impairment of assets

(42)

(762)

-

-

(804)

Amortisation expense

-

(5,527)

(5,557)

-

(11,084)

Balance at 30 June 2014

64,681

39,496

12,112

18,292

134,581

Additions

-

-

4,111

42

4,153

Additions through asset acquisition

-

1,878

-

-

1,878

Exchange differences

2,204

(125)

86

256

2,421

Amortisation expense

-

(6,183)

(6,317)

-

(12,500)

66,885

35,066

9,992

18,590

130,533

Balance at 30 June 2015

Asset acquisition
During the financial year, the group acquired the assets of Client Source Database from News Power Holdings Limited for a total
consideration of $1,878,000.
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Note 10. Non-current assets - intangibles (continued)

Note 11. Non-current assets - deferred tax assets

Impairment testing
In the prior years, Isentia had identified five cash generating units (‘CGUs’) i.e. Australia, New Zealand, South East Asia, Brandtology
and Greater China. Over the last 12 months, post Isentia’s IPO, management have now integrated these distinct businesses and
regions within the wider Isentia business as a whole. With the synergies generated within the business post IPO, the cash flows
generated are no longer independent within the previous CGUs. As a result during the current financial year management have
begun to monitor these businesses as two CGU’s, ‘ANZ’ and ‘Asia’.

48,414

-

Australia

-

45,400

New Zealand

-

3,055

18,471

-

Brandtology

-

7,524

South East Asia

-

8,702

66,885

64,681

Asia

68
785

39

37

157

136

45

33

312

250

Intangibles

4,647

6,306

IPO transaction costs

1,457

2,674

8,199

10,703

Derivative financial instruments

214

48

IPO transaction costs

953

1,778

Share based payment

89

-

Accrued expenses
2014
$'000

Accrued lease incentives
Unrealised foreign exchange gain/loss

Amounts recognised in equity:

1,256

1,826

9,455

12,529

Opening balance

12,529

2,600

Credited/(charged) to profit or loss (note 6)

(3,478)

8,595

(24)

1,334

Brands have been allocated to the following CGUs:
ANZ $16,369,000 (2014: Australia $16,327,000)
Asia $2,221,000 (2014: Brandtology $846,000 and South East Asia $1,119,000)
The recoverable amount of the group’s goodwill and indefinite life intangibles have been determined by value-in-use calculations.
The following key assumptions were used in the discounted cash flow model for the different CGUs:
1. Discounted cash flow model based on a 2 year projection period approved by management and extrapolated for a further 3 years
using growth rate of ANZ: 7% (2014: Australia: 3% and New Zealand: 3%) and Asia 9% (2014: Brandtology: 8%, South East Asia:
3%, Greater China: 3%).
2. Weighted average cost of capital: ANZ 11.75% (2014: Australia: 12.4%, New Zealand: 11.9%) and Asia: 15.0% (2014: Brandtology:
17.0%, South East Asia: 15.3%, Greater China: 17.1%). For the financial year ended 30 June 2015, the recoverable amount of net
assets of the group is greater than the carrying value of the assets and therefore, not impaired.

414

41

Provision for lease make good
2015
$'000

557
944

Employee benefits
CONSOLIDATED

2014
$'000

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Impairment of receivables

Goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs:

2015
$'000
Deferred tax asset comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Tax losses

Goodwill has been allocated to the ANZ and Asia CGUs by combining the previous CGUs of Australia and New Zealand to the ‘ANZ’
CGU, and the South East Asia, Brandtology and Greater China to an ‘Asia’ CGU for 30 June 2015.

ANZ

CONSOLIDATED

Deferred tax asset
Movements:

Credited/(charged) to equity (note 6)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss - Prior year unders/overs (note 6)
Closing balance

428

-

9,455

12,529

Note 12. Current liabilities - trade and other payables

Sensitivity
CONSOLIDATED

For all CGUs, any reasonable change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the CGUs
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Trade payables

3,205

2,188

Amounts received in advance

2,430

2,164

Accrued expenses

8,418

8,083

249

-

14,302

12,435

Other payables

Refer to note 22 for further information on financial instruments.
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Note 13. Current liabilities - derivative financial instruments

Assets pledged as security
The bank loans are secured by fixed and floating charge over the group’s assets. The loan matures on 5 June 2017.
Financing arrangements

CONSOLIDATED

Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

367

109

Unrestricted access was available at the reporting date to the following lines of credit:
CONSOLIDATED

Refer to note 22 for further information on financial instruments.
Bank loans

Note 14. Current liabilities - provisions

65,000

65,000

29,000

51,000

36,000

14,000

Used at the reporting date
Bank loans
Unused at the reporting date

CONSOLIDATED
2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Employee benefits

4,910

4,834

Earn-out provision

260

-

5,170

4,834

Bank loans

Of the $36,000,000 (2014: $14,000,000) remaining facility, $316,000 (2014: $316,000) has been used for bank guarantees.

Note 16. Non-current liabilities - derivative financial instruments
CONSOLIDATED

Note 15. Non-current liabilities - borrowings
Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges

CONSOLIDATED

Prepaid facility costs

2014
$'000

Total facilities

Refer to note 23 for further information on fair value measurement.

Bank loans

2015
$'000

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Refer to note 22 for further information on financial instruments.

29,000

51,000

Refer to note 23 for further information on fair value measurement.

(256)

(385)

28,744

50,615

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

346

50

Note 17. Non-current liabilities - deferred tax liabilities

Refer to note 22 for further information on financial instruments.

CONSOLIDATED

Total secured liabilities

2015
$'000

The total secured liabilities (current and non-current) are as follows:

2014
$'000

Deferred tax liability comprises temporary differences attributable to:
CONSOLIDATED
2015
$'000
Bank loans

29,000

2014
$'000
51,000

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Property, plant and equipment

23

27

Customer relationships from acquisition

7,645

9,198

Internally generated software - post IPO

935

-

8,603

9,225

9,225

10,948

(1,625)

(1,723)

Deferred tax liability
Movements:
Opening balance
Charged to profit or loss (note 6)
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Charged to profit or loss - prior year unders/overs (note 6)

1,003

-

Closing balance

8,603

9,225
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Note 18. Non-current liabilities - provisions

Movements in ordinary share capital

CONSOLIDATED
2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Employee benefits

351

370

Deferred lease incentives

151

112

Lease make good

131

122

Earn-out provision

124

512

757

1,116

DETAILS

DATE

Balance

1 July 2013

Buyback of shares in ISH

9 December 2013

Share split on corporate reorganisation
Return of capital

45,406,631

-

5 June 2014

(20,887,954)

(170,263)

-

256,301

139,436,214

284,450

5 June 2014

Balance

30 June 2014
30 June 2015

-

(4,149)

200,000,001

403,852

-

(190)

200,000,001

403,662

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on the winding up of the company in proportion to
the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The fully paid ordinary shares have no par value and the company does not
have a limited amount of authorised capital.

Share buy-back

DEFERRED LEASE
INCENTIVES
$’000

LEASE
MAKE GOOD
$’000

EARN-OUT
PROVISION
$’000

Carrying amount at the start of the year

112

122

512

Additional provisions recognised

39

9

94

Amounts transferred to current

-

-

(260)

Payments

-

-

(222)

151

131

124

There were no on-market buy-back of Isentia Group Limited shares.
Capital risk management
The group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimum capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
The group would look to raise capital when an opportunity to invest in a business or company was seen as value adding relative to
the current company’s share price at the time of the investment. The group is not actively pursuing additional investments in the
short term as it continues to integrate and grow its existing businesses in order to maximise synergies.

Note 19. Equity - issued capital

The group is subject to certain financing arrangements covenants and meeting these is given priority in all capital risk management
decisions. There have been no events of default on the financing arrangements during the financial year.

CONSOLIDATED

Ordinary shares - fully paid

5 June 2014

On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each share shall
have one vote.

The provision represents contingent consideration payable on asset purchase. The provision is estimated initially at fair value on
acquisition. Subsequent changes to fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

Carrying amount at the end of the year

(125)

Share issue transaction costs, net of tax

Balance

CONSOLIDATED - 2015

37,638

(44,014)

5 June 2014

The provision represents operating lease incentives received. The incentives are allocated to profit or loss in such a manner that the
rent expense is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Earn-out provision

36,089,124

Issuance of shares in ISD at $2.04 per share

Share issue transaction costs, net of tax

The provision represents the present value of the estimated costs to make good the premises leased by the group at the end of the
respective lease terms.

$’000

Adjustment to issued capital on corporate reorganisation

Deferred lease incentives

Lease make good

SHARES

2015
SHARES

2014
SHARES

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

200,000,001

200,000,001

403,662

403,852

The capital risk management policy remains unchanged from the 30 June 2014 Annual Report.

Group reorganisation (comparative period)
When Isentia Group Limited (‘ISD’) (the legal parent and legal acquirer) acquired Isentia Holdings Pty Limited (‘ISH’) and its
subsidiaries (the legal subsidiary), the acquisition did not meet the definition of a business combination in accordance with AASB 3
‘Business Combinations’. Instead, the acquisition was treated as a group reorganisation.
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Note 20. Equity - reserves

Note 21. Equity - dividends
Dividends
CONSOLIDATED
2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Foreign currency reserve

6,649

2,937

Hedging reserve - cash flow hedges

(499)

(111)

298

-

(258,229)

(258,229)

(251,781)

(255,403)

Share-based payments reserve
Capital reserve

On 18 February 2015, the directors declared an unfranked interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 of $6,200,000
representing 3.1 cents per ordinary share, with an ex-dividend date of 2 March 2015, which was paid on 18 March 2015.
On 20 August 2015, the directors declared an unfranked final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 of $7,600,000, representing
3.8 cents per ordinary share, with an ex-dividend date of 2 September 2015, which will to be paid on 17 September 2015.
Comparative year
On 7 March 2014, an interim dividend of $8,640,000 was paid to the then shareholders of Isentia Holdings Pty Limited, as noted in
the IPO prospectus.
Franking credits

Foreign currency reserve

There was no franking credit balance as at the end of the reporting period (2014: $ Nil).

The reserve is used to recognise exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations
to Australian dollars. It is also used to recognise gains and losses on hedges of the net investments in foreign operations.
Hedging reserve - cash flow hedges

Financial risk management objectives

The reserve is used to recognise the effective portion of the gain or loss of cash flow hedge instruments that is determined to be an
effective hedge.
Share-based payments reserve
The reserve is used to recognise the value of equity benefits provided to employees and directors as part of their remuneration, and
other parties as part of their compensation for services.
Capital reserve
The reserve is used to recognise contributions from or to Isentia Group Limited and its controlled subsidiaries by shareholders and
to recognise the acquisition of non-controlling interest.
Share buy-back reserve

Movements in reserves

HEDGING
$’000

SHAREBASED
PAYMENT
$’000

3,948

(1,148)

(1,011)

Net change in fair value of cash flow
hedges
Group reorganisation

Balance at 1 July 2013
Foreign currency translation

CAPITAL
$’000

SHARE
BUY-BACK
$’000

TOTAL
$’000

-

(1,182)

(746)

872

-

-

-

-

(1,011)

-

1,037

-

-

-

1,037

-

-

-

(257,047)

746

(256,301)

Balance at 30 June 2014

2,937

(111)

-

(258,229)

-

(255,403)

Foreign currency translation

3,712

-

-

-

-

3,712

-

(388)

-

-

-

(388)

-

-

298

-

-

298

6,649

(499)

298

(258,229)

-

(251,781)

Net change in fair value of cash flow
hedges
Share-based payment
Balance at 30 June 2015
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Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and financial liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis and cash flow
forecasting.

Movements in each class of reserve during the current and previous financial year are set out below:

FOREIGN
CURRENCY
$’000

The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the group. The group uses derivative financial
instruments such as interest rate contracts to hedge certain risk exposures. Derivatives are exclusively used for hedging purposes,
i.e. not as trading or other speculative instruments. The group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it
is exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate and foreign exchange risks and ageing analysis
for credit risk.

The group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currency and is exposed to foreign currency risk through foreign
exchange rate fluctuations.

The reserve is used to recognise the difference between the price paid and nominal value of shares acquired.

CONSOLIDATED

Note 22. Financial instruments

The carrying amount of the group’s foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date were
as follows:
ASSETS
CONSOLIDATED
US dollars
Singapore dollars
Malaysian ringgit
Others

LIABILITIES

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

1,379

929

125

14

448

259

-

89

-

34

-

252

180

291

2

36

2,007

1,513

127

391
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Note 22. Financial instruments (continued)

Remaining contractual maturities

The group had net assets denominated in foreign currencies of $1,880,000 (assets $2,007,000 less liabilities $127,000) as at
30 June 2015 (2014: $1,122,000 (assets $1,513,000 less liabilities $391,000). Based on this exposure, had the Australian dollar
weakened by 10%/strengthened by 10% (2014: weakened by 10%/strengthened by 10%) against these foreign currencies with
all other variables held constant, the group’s profit before tax for the year and equity would have been $188,000 higher/$188,000
lower (2014: $112,000 lower/$112,000 higher). The percentage change is the expected overall volatility of the significant currencies,
which is based on management’s assessment of reasonable possible fluctuations taking into consideration movements over the last
six months each year and the spot rate at each reporting date. The actual foreign exchange gain for the year ended 30 June 2015
was $89,000 (2014: loss of $668,000).

The following tables detail the group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial instrument liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the financial liabilities
are required to be paid. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows disclosed as remaining contractual maturities and
therefore these totals may differ from their carrying amount in the statement of financial position.
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
INTEREST
RATE
%

1 YEAR OR
LESS
$’000

BETWEEN 1
AND 2
YEARS
$’000

BETWEEN 2
AND 5
YEARS
$’000

OVER 5
YEARS
$’000

REMAINING
CONTRACTUAL
MATURITIES
$’000

Trade payables

-%

3,205

-

-

-

3,205

Other payables

-%

249

-

-

-

249

Earn-out provision

-%

260

124

-

-

384

Price risk
CONSOLIDATED - 2015

The group is not exposed to any significant price risk.

Non-derivatives

Interest rate risk
The group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the group
to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate risk. The policy is to maintain
approximately 75% of borrowing facility at fixed rate using interest rate swaps to achieve this when necessary. Actual hedge at 30
June 2015 was 100% (2014: 80%) of the principal outstanding.
As a result of the interest rate swaps and available cash balances, the group is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk
arising from changes to official interest rates.

Non-interest bearing

Interest-bearing - variable
Bank loans

4.04%

1,172

30,074

-

-

31,246

4,886

30,198

-

-

35,084

367

346

-

-

713

367

346

-

-

713

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
INTEREST
RATE
%

1 YEAR OR
LESS
$’000

BETWEEN 1
AND 2
YEARS
$’000

BETWEEN 2
AND 5
YEARS
$’000

OVER 5
YEARS
$’000

REMAINING
CONTRACTUAL
MATURITIES
$’000

Total non-derivatives

Derivatives interest rate swap
The group has entered into interest rate swap contracts with notional/principal value as at 30 June 2015 of $41,250,000 (2014:
$41,250,000). The interest rate contract hedge the group’s risk against increase in variable interest rate. The contract matures on 5
June 2017. Weighted average fixed rate is 2.98% (2014: 2.98%).

Derivatives
Interest rate swaps net settled

-%

Total derivatives

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the group. The
group has a strict code of credit, including obtaining agency credit information, confirming references and setting appropriate credit
limits. The group obtains guarantees where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the
statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. The group does not hold any collateral.

CONSOLIDATED - 2014

Liquidity risk

Non-derivatives

Vigilant liquidity risk management requires the group to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and cash equivalents) and
available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable.

Non-interest bearing
Trade payables

-%

2,188

-

-

-

2,188

The group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by continuously
monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Earn-out provision

-%

111

168

233

-

512

Financing arrangements

Bank loans

Interest-bearing - variable

Unused borrowing facilities at the reporting date:

2,379

2,379

53,182

-

57,940

4,678

2,547

53,415

-

60,640

109

50

-

-

159

109

50

-

-

159

Derivatives
CONSOLIDATED

Bank loans

4.66%

Total non-derivatives
Interest rate swaps net settled

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

36,000

14,000

Total derivatives

-%

Of the $36,000,000 (2014: $14,000,000) remaining facility, $316,000 (2014: $316,000) has been used for bank guarantees.
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Note 23. Fair value measurement

Level 3 assets and liabilities

Fair value hierarchy

Movements in level 3 assets and liabilities during the current and previous financial year are set out below:

The following tables detail the group’s assets and liabilities, measured or disclosed at fair value, using a three level hierarchy, based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, being:

CONSOLIDATED

EARN-OUT
PROVISION
$’000

TOTAL
$'000

-

-

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date

Balance at 1 July 2013
Earn-out provision recognised

(512)

(512)

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly

Balance at 30 June 2014

(512)

(512)

Earn-out provision recognised

(94)

(94)

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

Earn-out provision payout

222

222

(384)

(384)

LEVEL 1
$’000

LEVEL 2
$’000

LEVEL 3
$’000

TOTAL
$'000

Balance at 30 June 2015

CONSOLIDATED - 2015

Note 24. Key management personnel disclosures

Liabilities

Compensation

Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges

-

713

-

713

Earn-out provision

-

-

384

384

Total liabilities

-

713

384

1,097

LEVEL 1
$’000

LEVEL 2
$’000

LEVEL 3
$’000

TOTAL
$'000

The aggregate compensation made to directors and other members of key management personnel of the group is set out below:
CONSOLIDATED

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

CONSOLIDATED - 2014

Long-term benefits

Liabilities

Share-based payments

Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges

-

159

-

159

Earn-out provision

-

-

512

512

Total liabilities

-

159

512

671

2015
$

2014
$

2,760,792

2,561,988

120,170

111,834

25,471

33,446

224,798

-

3,131,231

2,707,268

There were no transfers between levels during the financial year.
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are assumed to approximate their fair values
due to their short-term nature.
The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated by discounting the remaining contractual maturities at the current market interest
rate that is available for similar financial liabilities.
Valuation techniques for fair value measurements categorised within level 2 and level 3
Earn-out provision were valued at each reporting date based on the likely settlement amount, discounted to present value.
Interest rate swap contracts have been valued at each reporting date using quoted market rates. Future cash flows are estimated
based on forward interest rates (from observable yield curves at the end of the reporting period) and contract interest rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various counter parties. This valuation technique maximises the use of observable
market data where it is available and relies as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
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Note 25. Remuneration of auditors

Note 27. Commitments

During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor of
the company, its network firms and unrelated firms:

CONSOLIDATED
2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Within one year

3,311

3,795

Other services - Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

One to five years

4,360

7,225

Tax services

More than five years

-

79

7,671

11,099

CONSOLIDATED
2015
$

2014
$

Committed at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:

Audit services - Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Audit or review of the financial statements

Lease commitments - operating

285,000

233,625

99,750

168,000

384,750

401,625

110,841

130,881

Tax Services

41,027

26,024

Other

47,368

-

88,395

26,024

199,236

156,905

44,124

41,246

11,703

12,948

Key management personnel

55,827

54,194

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 24 and the remuneration report in the directors’ report.

Audit services - Deloitte International Associates - Services provided to International Subsidiaries
Audit or review of the financial statements
Other services - Deloitte International Associates

Audit services - unrelated firms
Audit or review of the financial statements
Other services - unrelated firms
Tax compliance services

Note 28. Related party transactions
Parent entity
Isentia Group Limited is the parent entity.
Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 30.

Transactions with related parties

Unrelated firms are for audit firms not related to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

In addition to the above, $nil (2014: $1,514,000) investigating accountants’ report and review of forecast for the IPO was paid to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

CONSOLIDATED

Note 26. Contingent liabilities

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

-

80,787

-

6,797,748

Other income:
Interest received on shareholders loan

CONSOLIDATED

Bank guarantees

Operating lease commitments includes contracted amounts for office accommodation and office equipment under non-cancellable
operating leases expiring within one to five years with, in some cases, options to extend. Contractual escalation clauses have been
factored into the commitments disclosed above. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

316

316

Payment for other expenses:
Interest paid to shareholders on loan

Receivable from and payable to related parties
There were no trade receivables from or trade payables to related parties at the current and previous reporting date.
Loans to/from related parties
There were no loans to or from related parties at the current and previous reporting date.
Terms and conditions
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.
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Note 29. Parent entity information

Note 30. Interests in subsidiaries

Set out below is the supplementary information about the parent entity.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in accordance with
the accounting policy described in note 1:

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

OWNERSHIP INTEREST

PARENT
2015
$’000

2014
$’000

Loss after income tax

(779)

(9,086)

Total comprehensive income

(779)

(9,086)

Statement of financial position
PARENT

Total current assets
Total assets

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

-

-

NAME

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS /
COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION

2015
%

2014
%

Isentia Holdings Pty Limited

Australia

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Finance Pty Limited

Australia

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Pty Limited

Australia

100.00%

100.00%

Slice Media Pty Limited

Australia

100.00%

100.00%

Media Monitors Pty Limited

Australia

100.00%

100.00%

BuzzNumbers Pty Limited

Australia

100.00%

100.00%

Brandtology Pty Ltd

Australia

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Limited

New Zealand

100.00%

100.00%

Slice Media Limited

New Zealand

100.00%

100.00%

388,085

394,858

Total current liabilities

-

92

Mediapeople Limited

New Zealand

100.00%

100.00%

Total liabilities

-

92

Isentia Operations Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Group Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Library Group Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100.00%

100.00%

Malaysia

100.00%

100.00%

Equity
Issued capital
Share-based payments reserve

403,852

403,852

298

-

(16,065)

(9,086)

Isentia (Johor Bahru) Sdn. Bhd.

388,085

394,766

Brandtology Sdn. Bhd. (Malaysia) Company

Malaysia

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Pte Limited

Singapore

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Brandtology Pte Limited

Singapore

100.00%

100.00%

The parent entity and its Australian subsidiaries are party to a deed of cross guarantee under which each company guarantees the
debts of the others. No deficiencies of assets exist in any of these subsidiaries. Refer to note 31 for further details.

PT Isentia Jakarta

Indonesia

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Vietnam Co. Investment

Vietnam

100.00%

100.00%

Contingent liabilities

Isentia Manila Inc.

Philippines

100.00%

100.00%

The parent entity had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014.

Isentia Monitoring Services (Thailand) Ltd

Thailand

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Bangkok Company Limited

Thailand

100.00%

100.00%

Brandtology, Inc.

USA

100.00%

100.00%

Isentia Limited

Hong Kong

100.00%

100.00%

Significant accounting policies

Brandtology Co., Ltd

China

100.00%

100.00%

The accounting policies of the parent entity are consistent with those of the group, as disclosed in note 1, except for the following:

Beijing Isentia Information Consulting Co., Limited

China

100.00%

100.00%

Accumulated losses
Total equity

Guarantees entered into by the parent entity in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries

Capital commitments - Property, plant and equipment
The parent entity had no capital commitments for property, plant and equipment at as 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014.

• Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less any impairment, in the parent entity.
• Dividends received from subsidiaries are recognised as other income by the parent entity and its receipt may be an indicator of
an impairment of the investment.
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Note 31. Deed of cross guarantee

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The following entities are party to a deed of cross guarantee under which each company guarantees the debts of the others:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Income tax refund due

By entering into the deed, the wholly-owned entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare financial statements and
directors’ report under Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (‘ASIC’).
The above companies represent a ‘Closed Group’ for the purposes of the Class Order, and as there are no other parties to the deed
of cross guarantee that are controlled by Isentia Group Limited, they also represent the ‘Extended Closed Group’.
Set out below is a consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statement of financial position of
the ‘Closed Group’.

Prepayments

Receivable from subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2014
$’000

Deferred tax assets

Revenue

93,253

82,598

Other

47

186

(25,793)

(24,287)

Total assets

Depreciation and amortisation expense

(11,148)

(10,182)

Current liabilities

Employee benefits expense

(31,524)

(31,023)

Trade and other payables

Occupancy costs
Net fair value movement on put/call option
Other expenses

(2,181)

(2,048)

Derivative financial instruments

-

(17,830)

Current tax liabilities

(1,823)

(12,791)

Provisions

Finance costs

(2,535)

(14,990)

Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense)/benefit

18,296

(30,367)

Income tax (expense)/benefit

(5,006)

10,084

Profit/(loss) after income tax (expense)/benefit

13,290

(20,283)

(388)

1,037

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations, net of tax

3,517

619

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

3,129

1,656

16,419

(18,627)

Total comprehensive income for the year

2,479

16,055

14,842

-

4

1,115

819

19,601

18,144

7,150

5,702

32,200

32,164

957

965

93,352

100,894

8,806

12,516

40

40

142,505

152,281

162,106

170,425

10,412

11,027

367

109

1,940

-

4,315

2,253

17,034

13,389

28,744

50,613

346

50

6,697

7,317

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax liabilities

Other comprehensive income
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges taken to equity, net of tax

2,431

Non-current assets

2015
$’000

Copyright, consumables and other direct purchases

2014
$’000

Current assets

Isentia Group Limited
Isentia Holdings Pty Limited
Isentia Finance Pty Limited
Isentia Pty Limited

Other income

2015
$’000

Provisions

1,017

1,115

36,804

59,095

53,838

72,484

108,268

97,941

403,662

403,852

(254,196)

(257,623)

Accumulated losses

(41,198)

(48,288)

Total equity

108,268

97,941

Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

(48,288)

(19,365)

Profit/(loss) after income tax (expense)/benefit

13,290

(20,283)

Dividends paid

(6,200)

(8,640)

Accumulated losses at the end of the financial year

(41,198)

(48,288)

EQUITY - RETAINED PROFITS
Accumulated losses at the beginning of the financial year
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 32. Events after the reporting period

Note 34. Earnings per share

The group is in the process of entering into a definitive agreement to acquire King Content Pty Limited and its subsidiaries (King
Content). King Content is involved in content marketing services with the parent entity domiciled in Australia. The final acquisition
of this business will be subject to the group’s ability to negotiate acceptable terms and conditions and the approval of the Board of
Directors. The expected transaction value of the acquisition is $48,000,000. The effect of the King Content acquisition is expected to
be included in the financial report for the half year ended 31 December 2015.

CONSOLIDATED

Profit/(loss) after income tax attributable to the owners of Isentia Group Limited

Apart from the dividend declared as disclosed in note 21, no other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2015 that has
significantly affected, or may significantly affect the group’s operations, the results of those operations, or the group’s state of
affairs in future financial years.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share

Note 33. Reconciliation of profit/(loss) after income tax to net cash from operating activities

2014
$'000

19,616

(18,406)

NUMBER

NUMBER

200,000,001

148,090,996

203,917

-

200,203,918

148,090,996

CENTS

CENTS

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Options over ordinary shares

CONSOLIDATED

Profit/(loss) after income tax expense for the year

2015
$'000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

19,616

(18,406)

Adjustments for:

Basic earnings per share

9.808

(12.429)

Depreciation and amortisation

Diluted earnings per share

9.798

(12.429)

Impairment of intangibles
Write off of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payments
Foreign exchange differences
Finance costs - non-cash

13,592

12,363

-

804

8

3

298

-

-

(308)

137

2,410

Net fair value movement on put/call option included under 'investing activities'

-

17,830

IPO transaction cost included under 'financing activities'

-

9,063

Other expenses - non-cash

-

312

(4,865)

(2,954)

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets

2,884

(8,595)

Increase in prepayments

(237)

(437)

-

35

30 June 2015: Nil (2014: 965,743) options over ordinary shares have been excluded from the above calculations as they were antidilutive.

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in trade and other receivables

Decrease in other operating assets
Increase in trade and other payables

2,833

769

Increase/(decrease) in provision for income tax

1,921

(186)

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities

(456)

(1,723)

Increase in employee benefits
Increase in other provisions
Net cash from operating activities
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1,761

134

-

35,922

12,741
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

Note 35. Share-based payments

In the directors’ opinion:

The group has a long term incentive plan (‘LTIP’) which provides eligible employees with an additional incentive to work to improve
the performance of the group acquiring options or rights as part of the remuneration for their services.
During the financial year 476,743 (2014: 965,743) options were granted. The share-based payment expense for the year was
$298,000 (2014: $Nil).
Set out below are summaries of options granted under the plan:
2015

EXPIRY DATE

EXERCISE
PRICE

GRANTED

EXERCISED

EXPIRED/
FORFEITED/
OTHER

16/06/2014

30/06/2018

$2.04

965,743

-

-

-

965,743

10/12/2014

30/06/2018

$2.04

-

476,229

-

(134,881)

341,348

965,743

476,229

-

(134,881)

1,307,091

BALANCE AT
THE END OF
THE YEAR

GRANT DATE

BALANCE AT
THE START OF
THE YEAR

BALANCE AT
THE END OF
THE YEAR

• the attached financial statements and notes comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Accounting Standards, the
Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements;
• the attached financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as described in note 1 to the financial statements;
• the attached financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the group’s financial position as at 30 June 2015
and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date;
• there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable; and
• at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the Extended Closed Group
will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become, subject by virtue of the deed of cross
guarantee described in note 31 to the financial statements.
The directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.
On behalf of the directors

2014

GRANT DATE
16/06/2014

EXPIRY DATE

EXERCISE
PRICE

BALANCE AT
THE START OF
THE YEAR

GRANTED

EXERCISED

EXPIRED/
FORFEITED/
OTHER

30/06/2018

$2.04

-

965,743

-

-

965,743

-

965,743

-

-

965,743

The weighted average share price during the financial year was $3.05 (2014: $2.39).
The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of the financial year was three years (2014: 4
years).

Doug Flynn				John Croll
Chairman					
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
20 August 2015
Sydney

For the options granted during the current financial year, the valuation model inputs used to determine the fair value at the grant
date, are as follows:

GRANT DATE
10/12/2014

EXPIRY DATE

SHARE PRICE
AT GRANT
DATE

EXERCISE
PRICE

EXPECTED
VOLATILITY

DIVIDEND
YIELD

RISK-FREE
INTEREST
RATE

FAIR VALUE
AT GRANT
DATE

30/06/2018

$2.84

$2.04

40.00%

3.35%

2.67%

$1.06
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ISENTIA GROUP LIMITED

Opinion
In our opinion:
(a) the financial report of Isentia Group Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2015 and of its performance for
the year ended on that date; and

Report on the Financial Report
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Isentia Group Limited (the “Company”), which comprises the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2015, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows
and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity, comprising the company and
the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year as set out on pages 32 to 75.
Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control,
relevant to the company’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Auditor's Independence Declaration
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We confirm that the
independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors of Isentia Group Limited,
would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.
Report on the Remuneration Report
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 14 to 28 of the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2015.
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with
section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our
audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.
Opinion
In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Isentia Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015, complies with section 300A of
the Corporations Act 2001.

Yours sincerely

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Sandeep Chadha
Partner
Chartered Accountants
Sydney, 20 August 2015

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Unquoted equity securities

The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 7 August 2015.

Distribution of equitable securities
Analysis of number of equitable security holders by size of holding:

Options over ordinary shares issued

NUMBER
OF HOLDERS
OF ORDINARY
SHARES

NUMBER
OF HOLDERS
OF OPTIONS
OVER
ORDINARY
SHARES

1 to 1,000

316

-

1,001 to 5,000

422

-

5,001 to 10,000

202

-

10,001 to 100,000

164

1

44

100,001 and over
Holding less than a marketable parcel

NUMBER
ON ISSUE

NUMBER
OF HOLDERS

1,307,091

5

Substantial holders
Substantial holders in the company are set out below:
ORDINARY SHARES

NUMBER HELD

% OF TOTAL
SHARES
ISSUED

Quadrant Private Equity Management No.2 Pty Limited ACN 122 978 376

37,342,844

18.67

4

National Australia Bank Limited ACN 004 044 937

19,128,824

9.56

1,148

5

AustralianSuper ACN 006 457 987

14,967,057

7.48

19

-

Westpac Banking Corporation ACN 007 457 141

13,394,243

6.70

Commonwealth Bank of Australia ACN 123 123 124

10,012,838

5.01

Equity security holders

Securities subject to voluntary escrow

Twenty largest quoted equity security holders
The names of the twenty largest security holders of quoted equity securities are listed below:
ORDINARY SHARES

NUMBER HELD

% OF TOTAL
SHARES
ISSUED

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited

46,806,013

23.40

Quadrant Private Equity Fund

32,392,371

16.20

National Nominees Limited

30,642,311

15.32

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited

20,027,068

10.01

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited

15,463,074

7.73

BNP Paribas Noms Pty Ltd

12,560,892

6.28

John Andrew Croll

7,791,658

3.90

RBC Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited

4,952,029

2.48

QPE Co-Investment Pty Limited (Quay MM Co-Investment Trust A/C)

4,950,473

2.48

4,239,711

2.12

BNP Paribas Noms (NZ) Ltd

1,819,451

0.91

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited (Colonial First State Inv A/C)

1,814,958

0.91

1,581,171

0.79

Smallco Investment Manager Ltd (The Cut A/C)

UBS Nominees Pty Ltd
Nirav and Anjali Pty Ltd

821,137

0.41

UBS Nominees Pty Ltd

520,000

0.26

Joseph De Battista

492,681

0.25

MJC Pty Ltd

490,197

0.25

Bond Street Custodians Limited (MPPMIM-V16636 A/C)

482,758

0.24

Taverners No11 Pty Ltd (Brencorp No11 Unit A/C)

442,027

0.22

Invia Custodian Pty Limited (GSJBW Managed A/C)
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307,137

0.15

188,597,117

94.31

NUMBER
OF SHARES

CLASS

EXPIRY DATE

Ordinary shares

The Escrow deeds prevent Quadrant Funds, Mr Croll and Mr Shah (and their
associated entities) from disposing these shares until the company’s results for
FY2015 are released to ASX.

Ordinary shares

The Escrow deeds prevent Mr Croll and Mr Shah (and their associated entities)
from disposing these shares until the company’s results for FY2016 are released to
ASX.

41,756,440

4,413,597
46,170,037
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY
01
02

SOLICITORS

Doug Flynn
Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

Minter Ellison
Aurora Place
88 Phillip Street
Sydney, NSW 2000

John Croll
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

03

Pat O'Sullivan
Independent Non-Executive Director

04
07

DIRECTORS

05

06

08
09

Fiona Pak-Poy
Independent Non-Executive Director

Westpac Banking Corporation
Westpac Place, 275 Kent Street,
Sydney, NSW 2000

Dr Geoff Raby
Independent Non-Executive Director

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

COMPANY SECRETARY

Isentia Group Limited shares are listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange (ASX code: ISD)

Nimesh Shah
CFO and Company Secretary

WEBSITE

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The details of the annual general meeting of
Isentia Group Limited are:

10

Isaac Nichols Auditorium
219-241 Cleveland Street
Strawberry Hills NSW 2012
11:00am on Thursday 19 November 2015

ISENTIA
OFFICE
LOCATIONS
& GLOBAL
REACH
1. BEIJING

10. JAKARTA

2. SHANGHAI

11. BRISBANE

3. CHONGQING

12. SYDNEY

4. HONG KONG

13. CANBERRA

5. MANILA

14. MELBOURNE

6. HO CHI MINH CITY

15. ADELAIDE

7. BANGKOK

16. PERTH

8. KUALA LUMPUR

17. AUCKLAND

9. SINGAPORE

18. WELLINGTON
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BANKERS

www.isentia.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Corporate governance statement which was approved on 20
August 2015 can be found at http://www.isentia.com/investorcentre/corporate-governance

REGISTERED OFFICE
Level 3
219-241 Cleveland Street
Strawberry Hills, NSW 2012
Head office telephone: +61 2 9318 4036

11
16

15

13

12

SHARE REGISTER

14

17
18

Link Market Services Limited
Level 12
680 George Street
Sydney, NSW, 2000
Share registry telephone: 1300 554 474

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Level 9, Grosvenor Place
225 George Street
Sydney, NSW 2000
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Isentia Holdings Pty Limited
Level 3, 219-241 Cleveland St,
Strawberry Hills NSW Australia 2012
isentia.com

